City of Canning

Annual Report 2016-2017

2 | The City of Canning

Our Vision
In the City we are proud to protect and enjoy our unique national environment and work together to
enhance the health, wellbeing and sustainability of our community.
Our civic leaders are innovative and receptive to our visions for our future. As a connected and inclusive
community, we enjoy quality lifestyles and opportunities to live, work, play and do business locally.

We strive to:
• Service the people of the City of Canning with sensitivity to their needs and, encapsulate as part of
its culture, the organisation’s motto – “Above all – Service.”
• Provide for the convenience, comfort and safety of all people in the City.
• Ensure appropriate development and maintenance of the amenities in every part of the community.
• Build a City of opportunities and one in which people will be proud to live, work and recreate.
• Promote the economic development and substantial growth of the City.
• Provide open and fair government for all residents and ratepayers.
• Safeguard the health and welfare of those who reside or work within the City.

Our Values
Safe and Supportive
We are respectful, helpful and communicative with each other which creates safe and supportive
workplaces that nurture the wellbeing of our colleagues and their families

Professional
We are one team of professionals working hard and learning together, with innovation and creativity, to
deliver the City’s strategic goals.

Accountable and Honest
We are honest, ethical and accountable, and in serving the community of Canning we make
fair,impartial and timely decisions.

Responsible
We are guardians of our community’s quality of life by sustainability managing its social, natural and
built environment without compromising opportunities for future generations.

Caring
We treat the community with respect, courtesy and sensitivity whilst recognising their interests, rights,
safety and welfare.
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Mayor’s message
I am so proud of what we have achieved as a council over the past 12 months.
As a result of the Our City: Our Future community engagement program, the City listened to what you wanted for your community
and developed its Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027. This plan will guide us in all our decision making for the next decade,
making sure our community’s voice helps shape our City’s future.
It was clear from the feedback we received during the engagement process that community events are important to you and when
I look back on the major ones we held in 2016/17 it isn’t hard to see why. Events such as the New Year’s Day concert, Mid-Week
Eats, Harmony Day and our business focused events allow us an opportunity to connect with each other and celebrate our amazing
and diverse community.
With 40% of our community speaking a language other than English at home, the City of Canning embraces multiculturalism and
diversity. In 2016/17 we introduced a number of programs which are inclusive and welcoming including the innovative female
swimming and wellness sessions at the Cannington Leisureplex.
I am also proud to advise that the City’s first Reconciliation Action Plan was developed this year. This was made possible by the
creation of the Canning Reconciliation Action Group working in partnership with Whadjuk Noongar Elders and the local aboriginal
community and will provide us with a plan outlining our commitment and contribution to reconciliation in Australia.
Safety will continue to be a priority in Canning with the continuation of initiatives such as the Constable Care Child Safety
Foundation, eWatch and Neighbourhood Watch. As well as looking after our people, Canning is also committed to our pets and
provided great leadership with the creation of the award-winning Community Safety Trailer which can house animals and keep
them safe in the event of an emergency such as a fire.
The organisation is working harder than ever to make our vision a reality. We are working with more focus and honesty to develop
processes, programs, initiatives and frameworks that make the City of Canning an effective, streamlined and efficient local
government. This isn’t possible without a dedicated group of Councillors, an experienced leadership team and a knowledgeable
army of City staff, so I would like to acknowledge everyone for their unwavering commitment to making the City of Canning a
welcoming and thriving City.
As part of the City of Canning community, let us work together for even better outcomes this coming year.

Paul Ng
Mayor – City of Canning

The greatest threat to our
planet is the belief that
someone else will save it.
– Clifton Taulbert
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CEO’s message
Building community is our
commitment to an inclusive
and collaborative culture.
– Clifton Taulbert

We have achieved a lot in the past 12 months.
We have a clear vision of who we are and where we are going. We are absolutely committed to creating a welcoming and thriving
City which will allow our residents the freedom and opportunity to grow, prosper, connect, build and lead.
Over the past year we have shown courage by undertaking an organisational review which resulted in sustainable staffing levels, a
new leadership group and clearly stated outcomes to be achieved for the City. We are at the beginning of an exciting new chapter
that will see us strongly focused on positioning the City so we can build the respect we deserve as a Council.
With our values based approach and our ability and courage to think big we will position Canning as at the head of local
government in WA.
2016/2017 saw us actively building positive relationships at State and Federal level, strongly highlighting and advocating the
City as an area which will bring strong economic, social and environmental benefits to Western Australia. We have been and will
continue to be vocal and enthusiastic about creating opportunities that will position the City as a place with a strong community
focus, for families to enjoy, for new overseas arrivals to establish roots in Australia and for current and future businesses to thrive.
We want to be a place where community connection and engagement is strong.
This Council will continue to meet the challenges in the future; for us to be in the best position to meet the challenges we must be
prepared to change. And while that may undoubtedly make some people nervous, I am reminded of a quote by an unknown author:
“If you want something you have never had, you must be willing to do something you have never done.”
Let’s have the courage to be amazing.

Arthur Kyron
Chief Executive Officer
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Our Elected Members

Paul NG

Cr Ben Kunze

Cr Patrick Hall

Cr Lindsay Holland

Mayor

Bannister Ward

Bannister Ward

Deputy Mayor/Beeliar Ward

People who are crazy
enough to think that they
can change the world are
the ones who do.
Cr David Brown

Dr Christine Cunningham

Cr Pauline Tarrant

Cr Ayse Martli

Beeliar Ward

Beeloo Ward

Beeloo Ward

Mason Ward

Cr Jesse Jacobs

Cr Margaret Hall

Cr Tim Porter

Mason Ward

Nicholson Ward

Nicholson Ward

– Steve Jobs
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Our Senior Team

The best way to predict
the future is to design it.
– Buckminster Fuller

Arthur Kyron

Warren Bow

Chief Executive Officer

Director Canning Environment

Garry Adams

Graham Bride

Director Canning Community & Commercial

Director Canning Sustainable Development
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Progress against our Strategic
Community Plan
The Strategic Community Plan (SCP) is the community vision and one of many tools that will be used to guide the future direction
of our City. To ensure that we are responsive, the City undertook a major review in early 2017, named Our City: Our Future. The
review engaged over 880 participants using comprehensive community engagement and resulted in 1,500 responses. This
feedback was used to revise some aspects of the former Strategic Community Plan, creating a new vision and goals. The new
goals which are now the cornerstone of the City’s work are:
• Connect – an inclusive, safe and vibrant community
• Grow – natural areas where people and wildlife flourish
• Build – accessible, pleasing urban spaces that are fit for purpose
• Prosper – a thriving local economy
• Lead – accountable, responsible and forward-thinking administration
The City is delighted to provide you with an overview of our progress against the Strategic Community Plan.

Wellbeing and Community Scorecard
The Wellbeing and Community Scorecard (previously called the Community Perceptions Survey) allows the City to evaluate
community priorities and how these are measuring against the Strategic Community Plan.
In early 2017 the City undertook a Wellbeing and Community Scorecard with results revealing the City is performing consistently or
trending up, with only slight decline in some areas. The City is the leading Council in seven areas.
The City’s overall performance is high:
• Quality of life | 64% thriving (2% points above Australian Standard)
• Place to live | 77 index points (4 points above WA Industry Standard)
• Governing organisation | 64 index points (8 points above WA Industry Standard)
The City had many achievements over the 2016-2017 year and many of these would not have been possible without collaboration
from various partners. The City would like to acknowledge the many State and Local Government organisations, private and public
sector companies and a huge number of community members who have worked with us to achieve great results this year.

The most reliable way to
predict the future is to
create it.
– Abraham Lincoln
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Connect – An Inclusive, Safe And
Vibrant Community
Ranger and Community Safety Services
Since its establishment in 1998, the City’s Ranger and Community Safety Service has been available to residents 24 hours a day,
seven days a week, to provide assistance with relevant legislation and local law matters, and discourage anti-social behaviour in
our communities.
The service was one of the first of its kind in Western Australian local government, and will mark its 20th year of service to the
community in 2018.
This year, the service responded to over 11,000 customer requests, whilst maintaining a high level of customer satisfaction. An
average of 98.5% of customers rated the Ranger and Community Safety Service as Very Good or Excellent.
The team’s Holiday Watch and Bicycle Patrol programs continue to receive positive feedback from residents and contribute to
maintaining strong links with the community.
The City also became one of the State’s first ‘pro-life’ local governments for the management of cats and dogs. In October the
Council unanimously formalised the City’s long-standing position that the euthanasia of unclaimed impounded animals would only
be undertaken as a last resort.
Ranger and Community Safety Officers enjoy an excellent working relationship with local police and joint weekly meetings provide
an invaluable opportunity for collaboration and cooperation in addressing local issues and concerns.
In September 2016, the Ranger and Community Safety Services team was recognised as a finalist in the Western Australian
Rangers Association “Ranger Team of the Year Award” for excellence in service to the community.

Safe Communities
A key focus of the Safe Communities team continues to be the facilitation of partnerships with key stakeholders. During 2016/17
the team implemented a variety of local and targeted community engagement activities to raise awareness of crime prevention and
strengthen communities. Milestones this year included:
• Renewal of the City’s partnership with the Constable Care Child Safety Foundation, to enable the provision of their award
winning education programs to local schools.
• Expansion of the ‘Gone in Less Than 60 Seconds’ initiative; a partnership initiative between the City, WA Police and other South
East Metropolitan local governments, to raise public awareness about theft from motor vehicles. This project is currently being
evaluated by Murdoch University and has gained interest from other WA local governments.
• Continued development of community safety resources, including publication of the second edition of the City’s Community
Safety Handbook.
• Expansion of our ‘Community Safety Stations’ – dedicated community safety displays at the City’s Administration Centre and all
City Libraries and Leisureplex facilities, to improve accessibility of community safety information.
• Continued support of Neighbourhood Watch initiatives and targeted promotions, including the development of dedicated
communications, engagement and recruitment strategies that support the group’s growth.
• An evaluation of the City’s longstanding eWatch program is currently underway to ensure the initiative remains relevant and best
meets the needs of our community and local police.
• The City’s Community Safety and Crime Prevention Plan 2016-2020 was endorsed by Council in November 2016. The plan
provides a framework to address key local crime prevention priorities, actions and responsibilities over this period.
• A dedicated Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) Policy and associated guidelines were developed and approved by Council. The
Policy provides a framework for the City’s use of CCTV systems and ensures continued compliance with legislative requirements
and standards. A comprehensive review of the City’s existing CCTV program is currently underway which will inform the
Council’s strategic direction in this area.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/en/Community/Ranger-and-Community-Safety-Services
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Emergency Management
The City was a finalist in the Western Australia Resilient Australia Awards 2016 for two initiatives – an Emergency Management
Handbook, which forms a key part of our Local Emergency Management Arrangements and our multi-purpose Community Safety
Trailer. In addition to its use at community events, the trailer provides opportunities for evacuees to bring their pets to approved
locations adjoining welfare centres in the event of an emergency. This initiative recognises the importance of maintaining animal to
owner links as part of the Community Recovery Process.
These achievements recognise that the City’s innovative practices are making our communities safer, more resilient and better
prepared to manage and recover from an emergency situation.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Community/Ranger-and-Community-Safety-Services

Food Safety
The City’s Environmental Health Officers remained committed to their program of monitoring and enforcing the correct handling,
preparation and storage of food in our community. This required food business assessments of our 1,177 food premises, along
with food safety audits, food sampling, country of origin food labelling monitoring, investigation of food safety complaints and food
borne illness outbreaks and monitoring of food for sale at the Canning Vale Markets. The City also facilitated food safety training
to hundreds of food handlers during the year with over 3,000 food handlers in the Canning area completing food safety training in
2016/17.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Residents/Health-Services

Learning City
Almost 460,000 members of the community came through the doors of the four Canning libraries this year. They engaged in
various programming activities, borrowed both print and digital items, studied, read the papers, browsed the internet and just
relaxed.
The City continues to provide a number of initiatives and events that support the community with some of the following:
• Our library hubs continue to host fantastic projects in partnerships such as Read Write Now and Tax Help. Our book clubs, hobby
and craft clubs continue to draw great numbers into the libraries every month. Our online Your Tutor program for junior members
has more than doubled in subscription.
• In addition to the City’s standard weekly programs, the library hubs have delivered a number of additional community
engagement events including Around the World Families Week. Christmas at the Riverton Library received positive community
feedback. ‘Write Along the Highway’ and Children’s and Adult’s book weeks remain favourites.
• Riverton Libraries hosted a national exhibition called Brick by Brick where community members participated with hands on
activities illustrating Canberra’s vital role as a symbol of Federation – Brick by Brick.
• The library service continues to deliver over 600 early childhood literacy programs and over 60 adult programs across four hubs
with more than 12,000 adult and children participating annually.
The Learning City Strategy was adopted by Council in December 2016. The strategy will allow the City to support lifelong learning
within the community. The City also implemented a new modern Library Management System that went live in May 2017.

Community and Culture
The City has commenced the development of a Community Infrastructure Plan in conjunction with community stakeholders. This plan
will identify current needs and will form the basis for the development of the Community Infrastructure Plan which will deliver the social
infrastructure our community will need into the future.
The City delivered many events throughout 2016/17 which brought together our culturally diverse community. There were increased
levels of participation in events with Mid-Week Eats recording over 2,000 attendees on each night over five weeks. The new female
swimming and wellness sessions create equity for females who would otherwise be unable to participate in aquatic activities. This
popular program averaged over 200 participants each week and was expanded to include children under six being able to attend.

Capacity Building and Support
As part of the City’s commitment to create viable community groups, clubs and organisations we trialled a new funding application
process in 2016/17 to build capacity amongst these groups. As a result, we saw an increase in the number of new community
groups and not for profit organisations applying for funding.
The City’s Community Partnership Fund Grant program provided funding of $202,185 to events, services and facilities. In addition,
the program allowed 45 people to attend workshops co-hosted with Office of Multicultural Interests. The program also supported
67 community groups, 65 young people and 100% of eligible projects received support throughout the year.
The Canning Arts Group was supported to deliver a range of arts programs to the Canning community.
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Reconciliation
The City formed a Canning Reconciliation Action Group to develop the City’s first Reconciliation Action Plan, working in partnership
with Whadjuk Noongar Elders and the local Aboriginal community.
The City assists in the delivery of a number of special events for Reconciliation Week and the National Aboriginal and Islander Day
Observance Committee (NAIDOC).
• 200+ community members attended the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander International Women’s Day event at the Kent
Street Weir, in partnership with Langford Aboriginal Association, Richmond Wellbeing and the City of Gosnells.
• 97 community members participated in Noongar Language and Culture workshops.
• 104 community members attended the Makuru Film Festival.
• 150+ people attended the ‘Walk for Noongar Language’ NAIDOC Week event which raised money for a local Noongar Language Centre.

Multicultural
The City is proud to be one of the most multicultural local governments in Western Australia and we celebrate and support this
diversity throughout the year:
• The City partnered with the local community to celebrate a range of multicultural events including Diwali, Chinese New Year and
Harmony Day.
• 200+ community members participated in 18 Welcoming Cities community workshops and activities around employment,
settlement services, and access to English language services, essential services and how to connect with services.
• The City’s first English Conversation Group formed at the Cannington Library.
• 87 people attended the City’s first Refugee Week event which showcased young cultural and linguistically diverse speakers.

Volunteering
Volunteering has been a particular focus in 2016/17 and the focus of this year’s Volunteers Week was on culturally and
linguistically diverse volunteers and, connecting people with opportunities. Showcasing opportunities of how to contribute to
the community and increasing social connection and a sense of belonging were also key topics. Some initiatives held with
Volunteering WA during Volunteers Week were:
• 100+ potential volunteers met 13 local volunteer organisations at our Volunteer’s Fair run in partnership with Volunteering WA.
• 15 leaders from community groups attended Volunteer Management in Practice training.
• 33 community members learned about how to connect with cultural and humanitarian volunteer groups.
• 30 environmental volunteers celebrated Eco-Volunteering at the Canning River Eco Education Centre (CREEC) with two people
being added to the Volunteer’s Honour Board.
• 65 City volunteers were served brunch by City staff, the CEO and the Mayor at the Care Services diner.

Club Development
Club Development is focused on supporting and building the capacity of sport and recreation clubs and connecting community
members to the vast array of opportunities these clubs provide.
In 2016/17 the City provided support to many local groups including:
• Annual Clubs Community Conference attended by 80 people
• Supporting the development of a multicultural program at Riverton Junior Football Club
• Developing an integrated football team at Willetton Junior Football Club
• Facilitation of four club workshops
• Support in developing new junior girls teams at two local cricket clubs
• Processing of 695 KidSport applications
This year provided a great opportunity for the City to showcase its beautiful reserves and the world class Cannington Leisureplex as
we hosted the Special Olympics State Games in June 2017. The City also hosted the World Master Games in October 2016.

Disability and Inclusion
The City of Canning recognises the value of people with disability and their right to the same opportunities as others within
our community. It recognises the need for assistance and support for both people with disability and their families and works
continuously to improve access to its buildings, facilities, information and services to meet their needs. The City is committed to
ensuring all members of the community, including people with disability, have the same opportunities to live, work and recreate.
In 2016/17 the City adopted the new Disability and Accessibility Inclusion Plan 2017 – 2022. This document will guide the City in
ensuring that people with disability have equal access to our facilities and services.
As a result of the City’s involvement in the Special Olympics in 2016, participation in our programs increased after the
games had concluded.
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During the year, the City provided seven day per week support and accommodation to people living with a disability in Canning. We:
• Provided over 23,000 hours of support in accommodation and respite services
• Provided 17 people with accommodation in the City’s housing program including daily support and assistance to enable
residents to live in community homes
• Provided school holiday programs that have fully supported activities for school age children living with a disability in Canning;

Youth and Family Services
The City continued to provide support programs and activities for young people and their families in 2016/2017. Our commitment
to providing engaging programs and activities resulted in the City placing first in the 2016 Children’s Environment and Health Local
Government Report Card Project – Young People Making a Difference in Communities category.
Some of the youth and family services initiatives and events provided this year were:

Events
1. Two projects via the Canning/Gosnells Youth Collaborative Action Network (YCAN) included the “Loud and Clear Youth
Speaker Series” and the “King of the Hill Skate Series”. Both had a youth mental health focus and were strongly supported by
Headspace.
2. 3 on 3 Youth Basketball Tournament at Cannington Leisureplex in November 2016. Over 110 competitors participated and 195
spectators were in attendance at the event.
3. Two BMX, Scooter and Skateboard competitions in October 2016 and February 2017 at Willetton Skate Park. Over 250 young
people attended each competition, which included 115 competitors across two skill divisions.
4. The inaugural Canning Youth Fest was held in April 2017 at the Civic Amphitheatre as part of 2017 National Youth Week
festivities.
5. Families Week activities in May 2017 included a series of fun family events including AFL Day and a Mexican Fiesta.
6. Four separate school holiday programs were conducted with over 219 young people attending free or low cost activities.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Events
Support
• The Youth Accommodation Service provided supported housing for 19 young people at risk of homelessness.
• The City’s three Youth Activity Centres in Bentley, Lynwood and Willetton received a total of 5,981 visits from young people.
• The Young Parent’s Program, a partnership between City, Communicare and the Department of Local Government and
Communities supported young parents to upskill and stay engaged in education and training.

Care Services
With significant changes to Commonwealth and State Government funding programs across the Australian Aged Care Sector the
City conducted detailed reviews of its aged Care Services area. This resulted in the City undertaking a request for proposal process
which enabled Council to determine that Silver Chain Group would be the City’s preferred provider for the following services:
• Home and Community Care (HACC) Services, including Day Centres, the Regional Assessment Service, and all one-to-one
services to clients in their homes
• Home Care Packages (HCP)
• Respite Services (under National Respite for Carers/Commonwealth Home Support Program)
• Community Visitors Scheme (CVS).
The transition of services is currently underway with both parties working together to ensure that clients continue to receive a high
quality service with many of the City’s staff transferring to Silver Chain.
Access Care Networks Australia (ACNA) was chosen as the preferred provider for the City’s regional assessment service (RAS),
which was transferred on 1 July 2017.
The City continues to operate its residential aged care facility (Canning Lodge), Meals on Wheels service and services to people
with disabilities within City provided accommodation.
The City also reviewed the operation of its two retirement villages at Rossmoyne and Wilson and is in the process of implementing
a long term management strategy for these facilities.

18 | The City of Canning

Leisure Services
Both Cannington and Riverton Leisureplexes continue to have high attendance and provide a wide range of wellbeing and fitness facilities
and programs. These include senior and disability specific programs including the award winning Living Longer Living Stronger Program for
“Metropolitan Provider of the Year’ in 2016.
The Leisureplexes continue to be utilised by community groups for programs welcoming diversity in our community. In 2016/2017 this included
providing a space for teaching English as Second Language and the Richmond Wellbeing Women’s Dance Group. The City also introduced new
female swimming and wellness sessions in 2016/2017, creating equity for females who would otherwise be unable to participate in aquatic
activities. This popular program averaged over 200 participants each week and was expanded to include children under six being able to attend.
The City was recognised in the 2017 Parks and Leisure WA Awards for Excellence for this Cultural and Linguistic Diverse inclusion program.
Both Leisureplexes also continue to be accredited Waterwise Aquatic Centres with the Western Australian Water Corporation.

Riverton Leisureplex
Over 634,000 visitors attended the Riverton Leisureplex in 2016-2017.
• 409,422 of these visits were for the aquatic facilities and swim school program.
• 14,433 children and adults enrolled in swimming lessons, squad training and lifesaving lessons.
• Gym and group fitness classes had a 3% growth, exceeding 150,000 visits.
• Community groups and individuals utilised the crèche, Tumblers Kids Gym and function centre combined with 62,406 visits.
The City undertook an eight week refurbishment of the aquatic centre. This included replacing the main pool liner, change room
refurbishment and improvements to change facilities, LED lighting upgrades and improvements to the disability access. A feature
of this renovation was the community schools art project. Students from six local schools combined with a professional artist to
create aquatic themed murals, which are now proudly displayed in the pool halls.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/en/Recreation/Riverton-Leisureplex

Cannington Leisureplex
Over 438,000 visits attended the Cannington Leisureplex in 2016-2017.
• 249,372 of these visits were for the aquatic facilities and swim school program.
• 10,297 children and adults enrolled in swimming lessons, squad training and lifesaving lessons.
• Gym and group fitness classes had a 3% growth, exceeding 68,000 visits.
• Community groups and individuals utilised the sports courts, indoor playground and function centre with over 119,000 visits.
In February 2017 the City commenced Female Swimming and Wellbeing sessions out of the normal hours of operations.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/en/Recreation/Cannington-Leisureplex

Whaleback Golf Course
Whaleback Golf Course in Parkwood is a picturesque 18 hole public golf course allowing visitors of any level to play by day and
enjoy a driving range by night.
Over 65,000 people played 9 or 18 holes of golf in 2016-2017. The driving range continues to be well attended all year round with
over 26,000 visits. Seniors represented 37% of visits and students and juniors 2% of visits. Six social groups continue to offer their
members opportunities to come together and participate on a regular basis.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Recreation/Facilities/Whaleback-Golf-Course
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Natural environment – our place in nature
We enjoy and aim to protect our natural environment, taking responsibility by
working together to be an environmentally aware community.
Corporate Sustainability Program
Sustainability continues to be a priority for the City with the organisation embedding sustainable thinking into all cultural, strategic
planning and decision making processes. Our sustainability highlights for 2016/2017 include:
• The City joined the Cities Power Partnership and is continuing to implement the City’s Climate Change Action Plan to address
the risks associated with climate change.
• Endorsement as a Waterwise Council and the undertaking of Water Sensitive Cities Benchmarking.
• Sustainability workshops were held where City staff members produced a Sustainability Action Plan for their department.
Informal Breakout Sessions were also delivered to staff during lunch breaks which introduced simple sustainability concepts.
• The City continues to develop and implement initiatives to encourage a more sustainable built form in the City. Outcomes have
included the development of a Build Smart Live Smart Guide for builders and renovators.
• A quarterly corporate sustainability newsletter being delivered to a database of 274 people.
• Sustainability Star Awards were awarded in quarterly presentations to 12 staff members and teams recognising the
achievements in embedding sustainability into the City’s business as usual.
• The City has nine sites with solar panels equalling 357 kW, of this, 150kW was installed this year and generated 480,800 kWh
= savings of 380 tonnes CO2 emissions.
• New energy efficiency initiatives including solar panels, LED lights and air-conditioning modifications, will save an estimated
323,706 kWh this year = approx. $67,628 per year and 256 tonnes CO2 emissions/year. n total, energy efficiency initiatives
have saved an estimated 772,060 kWh for this year = approx. $149,560 and 610 tonnes CO2 emissions.
• The City used 9,015 tonnes of recycled road base material in 2016-2017, diverting this from being disposed of to landfill as
well as saving the extraction of virgin quarried material. Canning is a leader in this area within WA local governments.
The City provided a number of educational and community building initiatives including:
• Switch Your Thinking! Program including rewards for businesses and residents, the Switched on Schools Program and more.
• The City continued its Sustainability and Environment grants and sponsorships with Willetton Community Garden and Willetton
Primary School PNC receiving grants. The City sponsored three Canning schools to go to the Australian Youth Climate Coalition
switched on schools summit.
• The City provided 20 Residential Sustainability Audits free of charge to residents and homeowners within Canning. These people
were also offered composing equipment at subsidised prices..
• The City supported Garage Sale Trail 2016 with 80 total sales and stalls
• Participants of the composting and worm farming workshops were provided with subsidies to purchase composting equipment
trial such as compost bins, aerators and bokashi bins.
• The City installed two new bike repair stations at the Leisureplexes (with a third on its way).
• A Noongar art mural was installed at the Bentley netball court, celebrating and teaching culture.
• A monthly sustainability newsletter was developed and distributed to all 960 City of Canning staff.
• Over 22 workshops and events were held throughout 2016/2017 including the new Sustain April Living Series.
• The City has continued to engage with the community through the Sustainability and Environment Advisory Group. New
members were appointed to the group in June 2017.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Residents/Sustainability
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Parks and Place Improvement
The City continues to upgrade a number of parks and place improvement projects throughout the community. Some of the key
projects for this year are:
• Dabchick Park, East Cannington has been upgraded to provide new facilities for this growing community. The park has
play areas designed on a ‘nature based’ theme with barbeques, shelters and exercise equipment. A key feature of the park is a
‘reflexology’ path which has been designed to massage and stimulate pressure points on feet as you walk, Over 7,000 new plants
contribute to a biodiversity link with the nearby Bush Forever sites in Queens Park Regional Open Space.
• Bunning Park, Bentley is located on the highest point in the City and provides wonderful views north and south. The terraces
which have been developed give people greater use of the park. A new play area and exercise equipment has been installed..
• Kent Street Weir Park, Wilson. The dipping deck was constructed primarily for the use of Canning River Eco Education Centre
(CREEC) in conducting their classes for students of all ages. The general community also has access to the deck which sits
amongst the Flooded Gum trees and Melaleucas plants just upstream of Kent Street Weir.
• Sevenoaks Street, Queens Park. The Queens Park Streetscape provides renewed forecourt, parking and pedestrian facilities for
patrons of the railway station. It is at the centre of the Transport Oriented Development (TOD) Precinct which aims to increase the
density of the local area. It will provide a high quality public hub for the area and sets a standard for future development.

Waste Management
In 2016/17 the City’s 33,000 households sent approximately 30,100 tonnes of municipal solid waste to landfill. In addition,
approximately 7,100 tonnes of comingled recycling was recovered from the kerbside collection service.
The City’s Waste Transfer Station at Ranford Road received 8,500 tonnes of waste, managing to recover over 3,000 tonnes. This
was mostly green waste which was reprocessed on site and turned into mulch by third party contractors.

Mosquito Management
The City coordinates an annual mosquito management program focusing on protecting the health of our community from salt
marsh mosquito species that can transmit Ross River Virus.
This program is critical to reducing the risk of disease transmission. It also enables our community to live in close proximity to the
river and enjoy the public open space, walking paths, cafes, events, and other recreational pursuits, that are important to building a
strong and healthy community.
The City’s 2016/17 program kept mosquito numbers to a very low level and Ross River cases were below the annual average for
the area.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Residents/Health-Services/Mosquito-Management
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Built environment – living and
moving around
We live in a place with a variety of quality lifestyle opportunities with a diverse,
safe and integrated transport system.
Build Canning – Design, Contract Management and Transport Engineering and Project
Construction
The major focus of the Design, Contract Management and Transport Engineering and Project Construction operations continued to
be on the preservation the City’s road, drainage and path networks. Approximately $13.2M was spent on road improvement, road
rehabilitation, road resurfacing, traffic management, footpath construction, street lighting and drainage improvements during the
2016/2017 financial year.
Some key projects for this financial year were:
• Leige Street – Grose Avenue roundabout construction: The roundabout at this intersection was upgraded to a two lane
roundabout to cater for the increased traffic generated by the Bunnings development and the Westfield Carousel Shopping
Centre expansion in the short term and the development of the Canning City Centre in the future.
• Ranford Road Bus Lane: The eastbound peak period bus lane along Ranford Road between Bannister Road and Nicholson Road
was constructed to improve the operation of public transport in the south-east corridor. The westbound peak period bus lane will
be constructed in 2017/2018. These bus lanes will link into the Ranford Bus/Rail Station that is being constructed as part of the
Thornlie Rail Extension.
• Road rehabilitation projects utilising foam stabilisation technology which caters for heavy traffic volumes, were implemented on
sections of Ranford Road, Bannister Road and Lawson Street. Road resurfacing projects were undertaken on Vellgrove Avenue,
Victoria Street, High Road, Vulcan Road and Nicholson Road.
• Traffic management projects include the construction of parking embayments along Castlereagh Close in Willetton adjacent
to the Burrendah Primary School, along Cross Street in Queens Park adjacent to the Queens Park Primary School and along
Hedley Street in Bentley adjacent to the Bentley Primary School and Al-Hidayah Islamic School. The parking embayments and
modifications to the path networks and crossing locations will significantly improve vehicle and pedestrian safety adjacent to the
schools. Pre-deflection curves were installed on the Wharf Street approaches to the Wharf Street – Centre Street roundabout to
reduce the speed of motorists through the roundabout.
• Footpath projects include Hibbertia Crescent, Coker Park and Dabchick Park. Drainage improvements to address flooding
issues were also undertaken Jameson Street, Ravenslea Drive, Wendouree Road and Aderyn Place.

Build Canning – Design, Contract Management & Traffic Engineering – Architectural
Services
• Building Condition Upgrades at Lynwood Community Facility, Mulberry Tree Childcare; Rossmoyne Public Hall; and Coker Park
Changerooms including general and specific improvements such as fixture replacements
• Roof Replacement Works at Lynwood Community Facility, Mulberry Tree Childcare; Rossmoyne Public Hall; and Coker Park
Changerooms
• Asbestos Removal Works at Lynwood Community Facility, Mulberry Tree Childcare; Rossmoyne Public Hall; and Coker Park
Changerooms
• Accessibility Upgrade Works at various public toilets including Central Road and Burrendah Park and Shelley Park Foreshore
• Woodloes Homestead Improvements including new toilet facilities with universal access amenities; supporting accessible
pathways; and new onsite parking facilities
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Planning and Building

Economic Development

The introduction of online planning and building applications has continued to improve the service the City provides, with the
following results:
• The City saw 60% for Building and 36% of Planning applications lodged online through the City’s new Planning and Building
Online Lodgement System. There are over 600 registered users of our online system.
• Building Approvals are a key focus for the City in ensuring the service delivers quick and accurate approvals for our community.
A number of initiatives were introduced during the year to improve efficiencies and surveys during the year identified that
customers consider the City’s service as one of the fastest and customer focused in Western Australia.
• The 747 development applications received generated an income of $624,341.
The City developed a new Local Planning Policy LP.09 – Tree Retention and Planting – Development which was implemented in
May 2017. This policy will assist in increasing the canopy cover on privately owned properties within the City.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Residents/Plan-and-Build

The City has a thriving local economy, with 8,161 local registered businesses (Source: ABS 2016). There was an increase of 3% in
the transport, postal and warehousing and health care and social assistance industries since 2015/2016.
The following initiatives have contributed to the City’s economy over the past 12 months:

Strategic Planning
The City provides strategic planning to our diverse community, giving direction on how to create a more sustainable future. Some
key outcomes for this year were:
• The City’s first Local Planning Strategy was advertised for community consultation and adopted by Council in June 2017.
• The Queens Park Local Structure Plan was approved by the Western Australian Planning Commission in November 2016,
enabling higher density and minimum standards and requirements for developments.
• Scheme Amendments that were developed and approved aimed to make the City’s Town Planning Scheme 40 more modern,
simpler and standardised amongst other local governments.
• Repeal of completed Town Planning Scheme 30 and 33, removing unnecessary layers from the planning framework.
• Significant progress occurred on the development of draft new Local Planning Scheme 42, following the Local Planning Strategy.
• A draft Cycling and Walking Plan for the City was developed.
• Draft requirements for End of Trip Facilities (bike racks, lockers and showers) were developed. This will be a requirement of new
developments, enabling more people to do their daily commute by bicycle or by foot.

Prosperity – living, working and doing
business in Canning
We have diverse, vibrant places and opportunities to work, play and invest in our
local economy and support our local businesses and industry.
Canning City Centre
It has been a busy year for the progression of the Canning City Centre project. The City Centre Activity Centre Plan was endorsed
by Council in September 2016. It has provided for density, standards and requirements for new developments aiming to activate
the City Centre.
In order to advance key public realm and streetscape components of the Activity Centre Plan Council endorsed the City Centre
Regeneration Program in April 2017. This will allow for up to $70M to be spent on the City Centre over the next 10 years. The first
stage of works has commenced and will see the upgrade Cecil Avenue West (Albany Highway to Pattie Street) with engineering and
landscape architecture consultants appointed to deliver concept designs.
The Canning City Centre project also won its first award with the Urban Design and Public Realm Concept Masterplan being
awarded the Australian Institute of Landscape Architecture Award for Excellence in Urban Design. The jury commented that the
design is “thoughtfully borne out of local conditions, an armature of living streams, streets, and spaces and represents an important
step towards the future for Canning City Centre.”

Creating an enabling business environment
• The City commenced a ‘Red Tape’ reduction program, designed to remove barriers to doing business in Canning
• Local business are being introduced to the Local Government Procurement Process which is being delivered in partnership with
the Canning Supplier Development Program.

Supporting capacity of local businesses
• A program of workshops, seminars and networking forums was delivered, building the capacity and capability of local
businesses. These attracted over 900 attendees.
• Businesses were kept updated through the launch of Councils’ quarterly online eNewsletter titled ‘Canning Business Connect
(CBC)’. We received over 1,000 subscribers in our first year.
• A new Canning Business Mentoring Program was trialled. This involved businesses attending programs delivered in partnership
within Curtin University, Australian Institute of Management WA and the Small Business Development Corporation.
• Accreditation of the City’s Small Business Friendly program was received by the Small Business Development Corporation.

Diverse and Vibrant Activity Centres
• The City prepared a video profiling and promoting the importance of the Canning Vale Industrial Estate and the City Centre. The
video is supported by a range of fact sheets that include information on the demographics of Canning, profiles of Canning Vale and
Welshpool industrial areas and important sectors of the Canning economy: construction, transport, postal and warehousing, retail
and wholesale trade.
• The City managed the launch of the first investment seminar on the City Centre which was attended by leading investors and
property developers.
• A survey of businesses in the Canning Vale and Welshpool industrial areas was undertaken to get better insight into their future needs.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Business

Leadership and Governance – how we
decide
Our leaders are forward thinking, community minded, approachable people who listen
to the community and provide the framework for the future planning of our city.
Customer Service
The City is committed to being a leading customer-focused organisation. The mission is to consistently deliver the best service
experience to ensure every customer feels they are valued and their satisfaction is paramount.
In this respect, the City was recognised by the National Local Government Customer Service Network and won two customer
service awards this year in the categories of “Customer Focus and Innovation 2016” and “Customer Service Strategy 2016”.
Both awards recognise our continued focus in developing a customer centric culture and striving for excellence in customer
service. Our priority is to consistently provide excellent customer service whilst always placing the customer at the heart of our
work. We have simplified the customer experience through the Voice of the Customer Program and will continue to use customer
led feedback to review and improve our processes and procedures.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Connect
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Public Relations And Marketing

Procurement and Revenue

The Public Relations and Marketing team provide a professional public relations, corporate communications and marketing service
to the organisation and City. Over the course of the financial year, the team has developed and delivered various communications
and marketing plans and worked to build the brand of the City and understanding of the services it offers to its ratepayers
and residents. One of the highest profile events that the City assisted in marketing was the 2016 World Masters Athletics
Championships at Ern Clarke Athletics Centre in Cannington. The event, managed by the WA Athletics and TriEvents was a first for
the City, bringing thousands of international athletes and their families to the City.

In 2016/2017 the City developed Procurement and Contract Management Frameworks. These frameworks provide staff with clear
direction as to how to approach procurement and contractual matters, ensuring favourable outcomes for the City and mutually
beneficial supply relationships.
The City revised its Procurement of Goods and/or Services Policy in July 2016 to achieve further efficiencies within its supply
chain. Changes include:
• The ability to provide a qualitative weighting to businesses based within the City’s boundaries or those sub-contracting to
businesses within the City.
• Giving preference to businesses which demonstrate high levels of corporate social responsibility or social initiatives such as high
levels of employment of Aboriginal or people with disability.
The City has implemented a number of sustainable services to streamline financial administration. These were:
• Credit card pre-authorisation process for bond monies.
• Introduction of paperless online eRates service to ratepayers.
• Electronic payment methods for Building and Planning Applications.
https://www.canning.wa.gov.au/Residents/Rates

Website
One of the City’s biggest achievements was the new website launched in April 2017. Substantial planning and consultation
was undertaken to ensure the new website was able to manage the significant amount of functionality required and to ensure it
delivered a website that was easy to use, search and most of all easy to read. The website platform was chosen so that it could
provide functionality for many of the City’s consumer faced activities into the future.

GOVERNANCE
Audit and Risk Committee
The City of Canning has an established Audit and Risk Committee which is an independent advisory committee of Council. This
committee plays a key role in assisting the City to fulfil its governance responsibilities and is required to meet at least three times
per year. This year they met on five occasions.
The City’s internal audit function reports operationally to the committee. The 2016 rolling four-year Internal Audit Plan was
reviewed, updated and endorsed by the committee for 2017-2021.
This year, the Audit and Risk Committee received internal audit reports on:
• Financial Management Systems and Processes
• Whaleback Golf Course
• Development Applications
• IT Vulnerability
• Management of Building and Development Bonds
• Contaminated Sites
• Review of Compliance Audit Return 2016
• Review of CEO’s Biennial Review 2016

Risk Management and Business Continuity Management
The Risk Management function facilitates and enables effective risk management across the organisation. The City has a Risk
Management Strategy and Framework that provides a road map of risk management and organisational resilience initiatives for the
next three years. The City has introduced a risk assessment section to all council papers for assessing the risks associated with the
council decision of approving, differing or declining the officer’s recommendation.
The City has developed a Business Continuity Management Framework (for organisation resilience), in line with the international
standard for Business Continuity Management.
The City now has a dedicated Crisis Incident Management Team and a management plan that is capable of reacting to a corporate
crisis situation. Five key locations – the administration building, waste depot, works depot, Canning Lodge and both Leisureplexes
- now have business continuity plans in place. These plans will enable the continuation of key business process in the event of a
major crisis.

Governance Support
The City has provided information and training sessions for Elected Members and staff in relation to governance and compliance.
The City has also introduced an electronic voting process at Council meetings which provides greater accountability and
transparency in relation to the City’s decision making process. All votes taken are electronically recorded and displayed on screens
within the Council Chambers.

Complaints and Compliments
In 2016, there were 69 registered complaints that were actioned by the City. 54% of complaints related to perceived process
failures, 20% were staff complaints and 16% were complaints about service. Conversely, the City received 189 registered
compliments for 2016. 27% were related to the level of customer service provided by City staff, 29% were for the City’s Parks,
Gardens and Streetscapes teams, 15% were for the Waste Services unit and 12% of compliments were for services provide by the
Rangers and Community Wellbeing team.

Freedom of Information
The City received 20 valid applications for access to documents under the Freedom of Information Act 1992.

Public Interest Disclosure
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 (PID Act) facilitates the disclosure of public interest information, and provides protection
for those making such disclosures and those who are the subject of disclosures. The PID Act provides a system for the matters
disclosed to be investigated and for appropriate action to be taken. The City met its obligations under the PID Act, with a trained
Public Interest Disclosure officer being employed and having internal procedures related to investigations. There were no Public
Interest Disclosures reported this year.

Records Keeping
The City is committed to excellence in information management and is moving to an integrated, web based, mobile, enterprise
content management solution that will deliver information instantly and efficiently across the organisation and will be supported by
the new information managementframework and digital strategy.
This new system will provide staff with seamless system access and integration, leveraging the use of smart mobile devices and
emerging technologies, to meets the needs of our customers and the functions of our Council.
The City maintains its five-year Recordkeeping Plan, which was reviewed by the State Records Commission and approved in
December 2014. The City’s continued development of its recordkeeping policies, practices, processes and archival and disposal
arrangements contribute to the City’s commitment to best practice information and records management. Compulsory information
records management training is currently provided for new staff, while ongoing and refresher training is available to all staff.
With the implementation of the new system, the City will realise significant improvements in the manner in which corporate
knowledge is created, captured, accessed and managed. New training strategies and resources are being developed to support our
staff with the transition to a more agile and efficient customer focused organisation.
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Elected member attendance 2016/17 (1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017)
Ordinary Council
Meeting

Special Council
Meeting

Audit and Risk
Committee
Meeting

5

CEO Performance
and Salary Review
Committee
Meeting

Agenda Briefing

3

11

1

3

10

1

Annual Electors

Mayor Paul Ng

11

3

Cr D Brown

10

3

Cr C Cunningham

11

3

11

1

Cr M Hall

11

2

11

1

Cr P Hall

11

3

9

1

Cr L Holland

11

3

3

11

1

Cr J Jacobs

11

3

2

11

Cr B Kunze

10

3

8

1

Cr A Martli

8

1

7

1

Cr T Porter

10

3

11

1

Cr P Tarrant

10

3

10

1

5

5

Staff salary band
Band

2016/17

2015/16

$300,000 to $309,999

1

1

$220,000 to $229,999

1

1

$210,000 to $219,999

2

0

$200,000 to $209,999

0

3

$190,000 to $199,999

0

1

$180,000 to $189,999

3

2

$170,000 to $179,999

6

3

$160,000 to $169,999

1

4

$150,000 to $159,999

6

3

$140,000 to $149,999

4

8

$130,000 to $139,999

3

2

$120,000 to $129,999

4

3

$110,000 to $119,999

12

13

$100,000 to $109,999

34

37

Financial Statements
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Index to Financial Statements
Note No.
Independent Auditor’s Report
Statement by Chief Executive Officer
Annual Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income by Programme
Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature and Type
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Rate Setting Statement

33
34
35
36
37
38

Note No. Notes to and Forming Part of the Annual Financial Statements
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

Significant Accounting Policies
Revenues and Expenses
Description of Functions / Activities
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unspent Grants
Property, Plant, Equipment and Infrastructure
Borrowings
Reserves
Cashflow Information
Trust Fund Information
Comparison with Rate Setting Budget
Rating Information
Service Charges
Interest Charges for the Late Payment of Rates and Charges
Fees and Charges Information
Interest Earned on Investments
Council Members - Fees, Expenses and Allowances
Related Party Transactions
Depreciation on Non-Current Assets
Major Land Transactions
Trading Undertakings
Capital and Leasing Commitments
Financial Instruments
Position at Commencement of Financial Year
Financial Information by Ratio
Trade and Other Receivables

39
49
50
51
51
53
57
58
63
64
65
66
68
73
73
74
75
75
76
76
76
76
77
79
79
80

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

Inventories
Development Costs
Trade and Other Payables
Provisions
Rossmoyne and Wilson Retirement Villages - Residents’ Equity
Town Planning Schemes
Joint Ventures
Contingent Liability
Fair Value Measurement
Segment Reporting
Number of Employees
Total Assets Classified By Program
Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date

80
81
81
81
83
83
84
84
85
91
92
92
93

30 | The City of Canning

The City of Canning | 31

Central Park, Level 43
152-158 St Georges Terrace
Perth WA 6000
Correspondence to:
PO Box 7757
Cloisters Square
Perth WA 6850

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Ratepayers of the City of Canning

T +61 8 9480 2000
F +61 8 9322 7787
E info.wa@au.gt.com
W www.grantthornton.com.au

Report on the audit of the financial report
Auditor’s Opinion
We have audited the financial report of the City of Canning (the City), which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the statement of comprehensive income (by
nature or type), the statement of comprehensive income (by program), statement of changes in
equity, statement of cash flows, and rate setting statement for the year then ended, and comprising
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the
Chief Executive Officer’s statement.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the City of Canning:
a

presents fairly, in all material respects, the entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of
its performance and cash flows for the year then ended;

b

complies with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations); and

c

is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 Part 6 (as
amended) and Regulations under that Act.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the City in accordance with the
ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Statutory Compliance
I did not, during the course of my audit, become aware of any instance where the Council did not
comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 and Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 1996 as they apply to financial statements.
Responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer for the Financial Report
The Chief Executive Officer of the City of Canning is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including
the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Local Government Act 1995 Part 6. This
responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
In preparing the financial report, the Council of the City of Canning is responsible for assessing the
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the City or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Council is responsible for overseeing the the City of Canning’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

P W Warr
Partner - Audit & Assurance

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the
context requires. Grant Thornton Australia Ltd is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm
is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and
are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term ‘Grant Thornton’ may refer to Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 and its
Australian subsidiaries and related entities. GTIL is not an Australian related entity to Grant Thornton Australia Limited.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Perth, 8 December 2017
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BY PROGRAMME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
2015/2016
ACTUAL

NOTES

$
(9,425,243)
(3,746,387)
(2,300,105)
(17,298,535)
(1,718,545)
(20,504,727)
(38,959,268)
(18,771,813)
(1,976,634)
(4,123,813)
(118,825,070)

58,098,898
160,272
2,446,396
496,092
14,917,580
944,203
16,830,522
11,419,948
1,140,309
1,005,443
2,833,738

EXPENDITURE
Governance
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services

REVENUE
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services

39

(58,880)
227,221
1082
169,423

(10,459,564)
(3,710,704)
(2,828,513)
(16,659,643)
(926,856)
(20,023,368)
(37,508,527)
(17,928,888)
(2,222,889)
(4,831,112)
(117,100,064)

$
(6,866,336)
(3,868,530)
(2,409,565)
(18,288,311)
(2,416,398)
(20,665,156)
(38,812,209)
(19,863,980)
(2,066,706)
(4,571,323)
(119,828,514)

64,729,753
192,557
2,502,902
372,190
14,817,058
444,687
16,690,491
10,331,069
2,726,360
1,028,182
1,914,594

115,836,172

115,749,843

(1,263,892)

Increase/(Decrease)
DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
Gain / (Loss) on Disposal

2016/2017
ACTUAL

63,605,256
280,920
2,378,171
528,298
14,733,223
518,941
17,488,416
11,080,890
1,834,403
1,741,978
1,645,676

39

110,293,401
(8,531,669)

2016/2017
ADOPTED
BUDGET
$

2,6(a)
2,6(a)
2,6(a)

(4,078,671)

1,000,001
628,372
0
1,628,373

0
(176,189)
(176,189)

(15,000)
23,635,747

(179,001)
8,526,821

(16,323)
9,365,187

OTHER ITEMS
Bad Debt Expense
Non-operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions

9,348,864

Total Other Items

23,620,747

8,347,820

NET RESULT

23,985,228

4,092,960

0

28,047,694

23,985,228

32,140,654

986,618

4,313,017

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes due to Asset Revaluations

5,299,635

Total Comprehensive Income

2

8 (n)

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BY NATURE AND TYPE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
2015/2016
ACTUAL

NOTES

$
(59,739,986)
(29,028,424)
(20,608,473)
(4,707,967)
(906,275)
(577,710)
(3,256,235)

EXPENDITURE
Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts
Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
Utility Charges (Gas, Electricity, Water, etc)
Insurance Expenses
Interest Expenses
Other Expenditure

39
19

(118,825,070)

54,335,170
2,001,114
16,033,441
2,396,700
32,562,027
2,964,949

REVENUE
Rates
Interest Earned
Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Service Charges
Fees and Charges
Other Revenue/Income

DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
Gain / (Loss) on Disposal

2016/2017
ACTUAL

2015/2016
ACTUAL

$

$

NOTES

(60,213,936)
(28,753,219)
(19,597,804)
(4,052,811)
(1,177,953)
(478,265)
(2,826,578)

(60,871,337)
(28,568,790)
(20,530,211)
(4,508,931)
(925,628)
(471,021)
(3,952,596)

55,212,276
4,798,771
317,371
132,172
1,460
0

(117,100,566)

(119,828,514)

60,462,050

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

59,071,585
1,764,286
15,252,213
2,901,194
32,856,468
3,990,927

59,148,930
1,853,927
19,122,195
2,316,573
31,407,609
1,900,609

115,836,673

115,749,843

15

2,6(a)
2,6(a)
2,6(a)

1,000,001
628,372
0
1,628,373

0
(176,189)
0
(176,189)

(15,000)
23,635,747

(179,001)
8,526,821
0

210,171,352
517,307,118
4,443,471
2,367,404

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangibles
Trade and Other Receivables
Development Costs

823,068,077

11,885,345
9,229,871
2,477,394
5,855,577

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables
Provisions
Borrowings
Resident‟s Equity-Rossmoyne Retirement Village

29,448,187

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

8,347,820

NET RESULT

23,985,228

4,092,960

912,950
8,240,459

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Borrowings

0

28,047,694

9,153,409

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

23,985,228

32,140,654

38,601,596

5,299,635

Total Comprehensive Income

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

226,792,243
523,916,040
2,152,735
3,815,774
2,089,655

TOTAL ASSETS

23,620,747

8 (n)

6(b)
6(c)
6(d)
26
28

794,751,395

Total Other Items

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes due to Asset Revaluations

64,301,630

758,766,447

9,348,864

4,313,017

19

52,827,680
5,747,047
281,257
63,680
311,966
5,070,000

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

OTHER ITEMS
Bad Debt Expense
Non-operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Compensation paid for Serpentine Trunk Main Land

986,618

4
26
28
27

734,289,345

(16,323)
9,365,187
0

2

2016/2017
ACTUAL
$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables
Development Costs Receivables
Inventories
Other Assets
Land Held for Resale

12(a)
16
39

110,293,401
(58,880)
227,221
1,082
169,423

2016/2017
ADOPTED
BUDGET
$

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

29
30
7(c)
31

27,651,387

30
7(c)

NET ASSETS

299,988,148
424,475,710
31,685,941

EQUITY
Retained Surplus
Revaluation Surplus
Reserves

756,149,799

TOTAL EQUITY

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

871,187
6,255,050
7,126,237

TOTAL LIABILITIES

756,149,799

11,364,733
8,591,668
2,700,409
4,994,577

34,777,624
788,290,453

8 (n)
8

303,283,788
452,523,404
32,483,261
788,290,453
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
NOTES

Balance As At 1 July 2015

RETAINED
SURPLUS

RESERVES
(CASH
BACKED)

REVALUATION
SURPLUS

2015/2016
ACTUAL

TOTAL
EQUITY

$

297,746,528

32,940,943

420,162,693

750,850,164

986,618

0

0

986,618

Prior Year Adjustment

0

0

0

0

Changes due to Revaluation

0

0

4,313,017

4,313,017

0

0

424,475,710

756,149,799

Net Result

Transfer (to) / from Reserves

8

Balance As At 30 June 2016

299,988,148

Net Result
Changes due to Revaluation

8

Transfer (to) / from Reserves

8

Balance As At 30 June 2017

1,255,002

(1,255,002)
31,685,941

4,092,960

0

0

4,092,960

0

0

28,047,694

28,047,694

797,320

0

0

32,483,261

452,523,404

788,290,453

(797,320)
303,283,788

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.

NOTES

2016/2017
ADOPTED
BUDGET
$

2016/2017
ACTUAL
$

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
(59,792,199)
(31,248,603)
(4,707,967)
(906,275)
(577,710)
(4,786,156)
(4,220,587)
(106,239,497)
53,672,042
15,589,949
2,885,878
35,003,836
1,043,666
4,916,862
1,899,869
115,012,102

Payments
Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts
Utilities
Insurance
Interest Expenses
GST Payable
Other
Total Payments

(59,717,345)
(31,139,275)
(4,074,158)
(1,177,953)
(478,265)
(2,374,322)
(2,773,211)
(101,734,529)

(61,551,302)
(28,924,388)
(4,508,931)
(925,628)
(471,021)
(5,753,288)
(3,916,482)
(106,051,040)

59,664,430
15,252,214
2,901,195
33,016,697
1,749,286
2,587,790
4,038,995
119,210,607

58,289,385
19,112,887
2,810,254
31,833,371
1,853,927
5,138,434
1,558,265
120,596,523

9

17,476,078

14,545,483

4

0
(5,208,500)
(43,587,832)
(5,078,663)
(1,349,680)
0
(55,224,675)

0
(3,953,084)
(15,753,971)
(1,933,404)
(796,916)
(2,152,735)
(24,590,110)

23,635,747
1,000,001
0
904,582
25,540,330

8,526,821
0
0
617,855
9,144,676

(29,684,345)

(15,445,434)

0
(2,477,394)
12,552,930
10,075,536

277,749
(2,477,394)
715,000
(1,484,645)

(2,132,731)

(2,384,596)

Receipts
Rates
Operating Grants, Contributions and Donations
Service Charges
Fees and Charges
Interest Earnings
GST Receivable
Other Revenue
Total Receipts

8,772,605 Net Cash flows from Operating Activities
Cash flows from Investing Activities

0
(2,294,253)
(12,659,025)
(3,241,560)
(318,210)
0
(18,513,048)
9,365,187
0
1,082
764,277
10,130,546

Payments
Net (Outflows) / Inflows for Purchase of Investments
Purchase Land and Buildings
Purchase Infrastructure Assets
Purchase Plant and Equipment
Purchase Furniture and Equipment
Purchase Intangible Assets
Receipts
Non-Operating Grants, Contributions and Donations
Disposal of Land and Building
Disposal of Furniture and Equipment
Disposal of Plant and Equipment

2
6(a)
6(a)
6(a)

(8,382,502) Net cash flows from Investing Activities

(647,600)
(2,385,441)
0
(3,033,041)

Cashflows from Financing Activities
Town Planning Development Schemes
Loan Repayments- Principal
New Borrowings
Net cash flows from Financing Activities

7(c)
7(c)

(2,642,938) Net (decrease)/increase in cash held
57,855,214 Cash at the Beginning of Reporting Period

4

47,504,448

55,212,276

55,212,276 Cash at the End of Reporting Period

9

45,371,718

52,827,680

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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RATE SETTING STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
2015/2016
ACTUAL

1

NOTES

$
4,061,710
160,272
2,446,396
496,092
14,917,580
944,203
16,830,522
11,419,948
1,140,309
1,005,443
2,833,738
56,256,213
(9,425,243)
(3,746,387)
(2,300,105)
(17,298,535)
(1,718,545)
(20,504,727)
(38,959,268)
(18,771,813)
(1,976,634)
(4,123,813)
(118,825,070)
(62,568,857)
22,260
580,398
(2,159)
765,359
20,608,473

REVENUES
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
EXPENSES
Governance
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
Net result excluding rates
ADD
Movements in Employee Benefit Provision (Non-Current)
Movements in Underground Power Debtors (Non-Current)
Movements in Deferred Pensioner Rates & ESL (Non-Current)
Proceeds from Disposal of fixed assets
Depreciation

2,6
19

21,974,331
(16,323)
9,365,187
9,348,864
(2,294,253)
(10,564,874)
(2,091,015)
(3,135)
(3,241,560)
(318,210)
(2,385,442)
(8,388,051)
(1,363,017)
(30,649,558)
9,643,053
0
393,958
0
10,037,011
4,396,972
(6,575,951)
(54,037,188)

OTHER ITEMS
Bad Debts Expensed
Non Operating Grants and Contributions
LESS CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Purchase Land and Buildings
Infrastructure Assets -Roads
-Recreation Facilites
-Other
Purchase Plant & Equipment
Purchase Furniture & Equipment
Purchase Intangible Assets
Repayment of Debt-Principal
Transfers to Reserves
Transfers Other
LESS - FUNDING FROM
Reserves
Loans
Transfers Other
Loan Funds Unspent - From previous year
Opening Funds
Closing Funds
TO BE RAISED FROM GENERAL RATES

7(c)
8

8
7

24
24

2016/2017
ADOPTED
BUDGET
$

2016/2017
ACTUAL
$

4,818,071
280,920
2,378,171
528,298
14,733,223
518,941
17,488,416
11,080,890
1,834,403
1,741,978
1,645,676
57,048,987

5,891,847
192,557
2,502,902
372,190
14,817,058
444,687
16,690,491
10,331,069
2,726,360
1,028,182
1,914,594
56,911,937

(10,459,564)
(3,710,704)
(2,828,513)
(16,659,643)
(926,856)
(20,023,368)
(37,508,527)
(17,928,888)
(2,222,889)
(4,831,112)
(117,100,064)
(60,051,077)

(6,866,336)
(3,868,530)
(2,409,565)
(18,288,311)
(2,416,398)
(20,665,156)
(38,812,209)
(19,863,980)
(2,066,706)
(4,571,323)
(119,828,514)
(62,916,577)

0
0
0
1,904,583
19,597,804

(41,763)
607,412
1,115
617,855
20,530,211

21,502,387

21,714,830

(15,000)
23,635,747
23,620,747

(179,001)
8,526,821
8,347,820

(5,208,500)
(40,477,332)
(3,110,500)
0
(5,078,663)
(1,349,680)
0
(2,477,394)
(7,130,474)
(147,600)
(64,980,143)

(3,953,084)
(13,239,923)
(2,495,728)
(18,320)
(1,933,404)
(796,916)
(2,152,735)
(2,477,394)
(6,714,210)
(25,964)
(33,807,678)

7,002,664
12,552,930
141,000
0
19,696,594
1,774,306
(350,000)
(58,787,185)

5,916,890
715,000
335,629
0
6,967,519
6,575,952
(5,719,773)
(58,837,907)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of the Financial Report are:

1.1.0 Basis of Accounting
The financial report comprises general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (as they apply to local governments and not-for-profit entities), Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1995 and accompanying regulations. Material accounting
policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated
otherwise.
Except for cash flow and rate setting information, the report has been prepared on the accrual basis and is based on historical costs, modified,
where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and liabilities.

1.2.0 The Local Government Reporting Entity
All Funds through which the Council controls resources to carry on its functions have been included in the financial statements forming part of this
budget.
In the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all transactions and balances between those funds (for example, loans and
transfers between Funds) have been eliminated.
All monies held in the Trust Fund are excluded from the financial statements, but a separate statement of those monies is disclosed.

1.3.0 Non-Current Assets - Valuation and Depreciation
Fixed Assets
Each class of fixed assets is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation or impairment losses.
Mandatory Requirement to Revalue Non-Current Assets
Effective from 1 July 2012, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations were amended and the measurement of non-current assets at
fair value became mandatory.
During the year ended 30 June 2013, the City commenced the process of adopting Fair Value in accordance with the Regulations.
Whilst the amendments initially allowed for a phasing in of fair value in relation to fixed assets over three years, as at 30 June 2015 all non-current
assets were carried at Fair Value in accordance with the requirements.
Thereafter, each asset class must be revalued in accordance with the regulatory framework established and the City revalues its asset classes in
accordance with this mandatory timetable.
Relevant disclosures, in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, have been made in the financial statements where
necessary.

Land Under Control
In accordance with Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 16 (a), the Council is required to include as an asset, Crown Land
operated by the local government as a golf course, showground, racecourse or other sporting or recreational facility of State or regional
significance. The Council maintains control over a golf course which was recognised as crown land.
Upon initial recognition, these assets were recorded at cost in accordance with AASB 116. They were then classified as Land and revalued along
with other land in accordance with other policies detailed in this Note.
Whilst they were initially recorded at cost, fair value at the date of acquisition was deemed cost as per AASB 116.
Easements
The Council has determined that under AASB 138 Intangible Assets, easements are valued on an historical cost basis, because it is unlikely that an
active market in easements exists to allow for fair value measurement. Due to acquisition of easements at NIL values, no easements have been
included in the financial report.

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1.4.0 Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities
When performing a revaluation, the City uses a mix of both independent and management valuations using the following as a guide:

Initial Recognition
All assets are initially recognised at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the
acquisition. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of noncurrent assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overheads.
Individual assets acquired between initial recognition and the next revaluation of the asset class in accordance with the mandatory measurement
framework detailed above, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation as management believes this approximates fair value. They will be
subject to subsequent revaluation at the next anniversary date in accordance with the mandatory measurement framework detailed above.
Revaluation
Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets are credited to a revaluation surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous
increases of the same asset are recognised against revaluation surplus directly in equity. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair Value is the price that the City would receive to sell the asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability, in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction
between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.
As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments
to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets that are not traded in an
active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of
observable market data.
To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. the market with the greatest
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the entity at the
end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset after taking into account transaction costs and
transport costs).
For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant‟s ability to use the asset in its highest and best use
or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Major depreciation periods used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Fair value hierarchy

Property, Plant and Equipment
Buildings
Tools
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Equipment

15 to 100 Years
2 to 5 Years
3 to 15 Years
5 to 10 Years

Infrastructure Assets
Infrastructure - Roads
Formation
Not Depreciated
Base
50 to 120 Years
Seal
15 to 30 Years
Kerb
30 to 60 Years
Street and Parking Signs
10 to 15 Years
Bus Shelter
20 Years
50 Years
Infrastructure - Footpaths and Cycleways
Infrastructure - Drainage
80 Years
Infrastructure - Bridges
75 Years
Bridges
Culvert
50 Years
Infrastructure - Recreational Facilities
Playing Fields
Not Depreciated
Passive Parklands
Not Depreciated
Reticulation and Irrigation
10 to 25 Years
Lighting
40 Years
Fences
5 to 30 Years
Play Equipment and Facilities
10 to 20 Years
BBQ and Park Furniture
5 to 10 Years
Infrastructure - Other
Car Parks
20 Years
War Memorial
100 Years
The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
Capitalisation threshold
Expenditure on items of equipment below $5,000 is not capitalised.

AASB 13 requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, which categorises fair value measurement into one of
three possible levels based on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:
Level 1
Measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date.
Level 2
Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.
Level 3
Measurements based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair value are
observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the asset or
liability is included in Level 3.

Valuation techniques
The City selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The
availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation
techniques selected by the City are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:
Market Approach
Valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities.
Income Approach
Valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single discounted presented value.
Cost Approach
Valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.
Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the City gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable
inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual
transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable,
whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions are
considered unobservable.
As detailed above, the mandatory measurement framework imposed by the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations requires, as a
minimum, all assets carried at a revalued amount to be revalued at least every 3 years.
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Impairment

1.5.0 Financial Instruments
Initial Recognition and Measurement

A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events (a “loss event”)
having occurred, which will have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the instrument. For
financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the Council commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is
adopted). Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified „at fair value
through profit of loss‟, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately.

In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the market value of the instrument is considered a loss event.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss immediately. Also, any cumulative decline in fair value previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss at this point.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement
Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, or cost.
Amortised cost is calculated as:
(a) the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition;
(b) less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment; and
(c) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated
using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest method used is to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
(or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of
an income or expense in profit or loss.

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance account is used to reduce the carrying amount
of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying
amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or the carrying amount of
impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance account.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the asset is transferred to another party whereby
the Council no longer has any significant continual involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset.
Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair value of the consideration paid, including the transfer of noncash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets are classified at “fair value through profit or loss” when they are held for trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in carrying amount being included in profit or loss.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Impairment of Assets
In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the City's assets, other than inventories, are assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication they may be impaired.

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Loans and receivables are included in current assets where they are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
(iii) Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments that the Council has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Held-to-maturity investments are included in current assets where they are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. All other investments are classified as non-current.

Where such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, to the asset's carrying amount.
Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount in accordance with another Standard (e.g. AASB 116) whereby any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
decrease in accordance with that other Standard.
For non-cash generating assets such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, value in use is represented by the depreciated replacement
cost of the asset.

1.6.0 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Council prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid
and arise when the Council becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are
unsecured, are recognised as a current liability and are normally paid within 30 days of recognition.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either not suitable to be classified into other categories of financial
assets due to their nature, or they are designated as such by management. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is
neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.
They are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in such fair value (i.e. gains or losses) recognised in other comprehensive income
(except for impairment losses). When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pertaining to that asset previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are included in current assets, where they are expected to be sold within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. All other available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current.
(v) Financial liabilities

1.7.0 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred except where they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. Where this is the case, they are capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset until such time as the asset is
substantially ready for its intended use or sale.
1.8.0 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

a) the Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
b) for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result; and
c) that outflow can be reliably measured.
Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.
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1.9.0 Revenue Recognition

1.14.0 Leases
Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not legal ownership, are transferred
to the Shire, are classified as finance leases.

1.9.1 Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions
Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the City of Canning obtains control over the assets comprising
the contributions. Control over Assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where earlier, upon receipt of
the rates. Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt or upon prior notification that a grant has been secured, and the
timing of commencement of control depends upon the arrangements that exist between the grantor and the City of Canning. Unreceived
contributions over which the City of Canning has control are recognised as receivables.
Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a particular
manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of and amounts pertaining to
those undischarged conditions are disclosed in Note 5. That note also discloses the amount of contributions recognised as revenues in a previous
reporting period which were obtained in respect of the City of Canning‟s operations for the current reporting period. Should the City receive Grant
Funding related to future financial years then these monies will be recognised as a liability for Income In Advance. The rating and reporting period
coincides with rates levied for the year and recognised as revenues. All outstanding rates are collectable and therefore no provision has been made
for doubtful debts.

Finance leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability at the lower amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present
value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease
liability
and the lease interest expense for the period. Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives
or the lease term.
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.
Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the lease term.

1.15.0 Cash and Cash Equivalents
1.9.2 User fees and fines
User fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received, or
when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.
A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when collection in full is no longer probable.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and current investments in money market instruments, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.
Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables include amounts due from ratepayers for unpaid rates and service charges and other amounts due from third parties
for goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course of business.
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are
classified as non-current assets.

1.9.3 Rental
Rents are recognised as revenue when a payment is due or is received, which ever first occurs. Rental payments received in advance are
recognised as a prepayment until they are due.

Collectability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when
identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence that they will not be collectible.

1.9.4 Interest
Interest is recognised as it is earned.

1.16.0 Trade and Other Receivables

1.10.0 Employee Benefits

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from ratepayers for unpaid rates and service charges and other amounts due from third parties
for goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Short-term employee benefits
Provision is made for the City's obligations for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits are benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the
related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to
be paid when the obligation is settled.
The City's obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are recognised as a part of current trade and other
payables in the statement of financial position. The City's obligations for employees‟ annual leave and long service leave entitlements are
recognised as provisions in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits
Provision is made for employees‟ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels,
durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in
assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the changes occur.
The City's obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its statement of financial position, except where
the City does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the
obligations are presented as current provisions.

1.11.0 Superannuation
The City contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Fund and makes payments to other defined funds in accordance with Choice of
Superannuation Fund laws passed in July 2005. Contributions are recognised as an expense, as they are incurred.
1.12.0 Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid Expenses include amounts that relate to the operations of Canning Lodge, which Council assumed responsibility from the Association of the
Blind.
1.13.0 Stock on Hand
Stocks on hand of materials and stores are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Materials are issued to works on basis of cost.
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Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are
classified as non-current assets.
Collectability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when
identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence that they will not be collectible.

1.17.0 Investments in Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Council has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial operating
policy decisions of that entity but is not control or joint control of those policies. Investments in associates are accounted for in the financial
statements by applying the equity method of accounting, whereby the investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the postacquisition change in the Council‟s share of net assets of the associate. In addition, the Council‟s share of the profit or loss of the associate is
included in the Council‟s profit or loss.
The carrying amount of the investment includes, where applicable, goodwill relating to the associate. Any discount on acquisition, whereby the
Council‟s share of the net fair value of the associate exceeds the cost of investment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Council and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the Council‟s interest in the
associate.
When the Council‟s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Council discontinues recognising its share of
further losses unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. When the associate subsequently
makes profits, the Council will resume recognising its share of those profits once its share of the profits equals the share of the losses not
recognised.

1.18.0 Interest in Joint Arrangements
Joint arrangements represent the contractual sharing of control between parties in a business venture where unanimous decisions about relevant
activities are required.
Separate joint venture entities providing joint venturers with an interest to net assets are classified as a joint venture and accounted for using the
equity method. Refer to note 1.17.0 for a description of the equity method of accounting.
Joint venture operations represent arrangements whereby joint operators maintain direct interests in each asset and exposure to each liability of the
arrangement. The Council‟s interests in the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint operations are included in the respective line items of
the financial statements.
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1.19.0 Goods and Services Tax (GST)
In accordance with recommended practice, revenue expenses and assets capitalised are stated net of any GST recoverable, except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and Payables in the Balance Sheet are stated
inclusive of applicable GST. Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Title
(i)

AASB 9 – Financial
Instruments (incorporating
AASB 2014-7 and AASB 20148)

Issued
/ Compiled

Applicable (1)

Impact

December 2014

1 January 2018

Nil – The objective of this Standard is to
improve and simplify the approach for
classification and measurement of financial
assets compared with the requirements of
AASB 139. Given the nature of compared with
the requirements of AASB 139. Given the
nature of the financial assets of the Council, it
is not anticipated the standard will have any
material impact.

Issued
/ Compiled

Applicable (1)

December 2014

1 January 2019

1.20.0 Segment Reporting
Whilst Local Governments are not required to comply with AASB 114 “Segment Reporting”, the City of Canning is an approved provider of
residential aged care and receives funding from the Department of Health and Ageing. The funding is provided in accordance with the Aged Care
Act 1997 and is governed by the Residential Care Subsidy Amendment Principles 2005 (No.1). A condition of these principles is that Residential
Aged Care be treated as a reportable segment by the approved provider as part of its Financial Report. The Council does not treat any other part of
its activities as reportable segments.

1.21.0 Land Held for Resale
Land held for development and sale is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of acquisition, development,
borrowing costs and holding costs until completion of development. Finance costs and holding charges incurred after development is completed
are expensed.

Title
(ii)

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss at the time of signing an unconditional contract of sale if significant risks and rewards, and effective
control over the land, are passed on to the buyer at this point.

AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Land held for sale is classified as current except where it is held as non-current based on the Council‟s intentions to release for sale.

Impact
This Standard establishes principles for
entities to apply to report useful information
to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from a
contract with a customer.
The effect of this Standard will depend upon
the nature of future transactions the City has
with those third parties it has dealings with. It
may or may not be significant.

1.22.0 Comparative Information
Comparative Information has been included in the Financial Statements. Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with
changes in presentation for the current financial year.

1.23.0 Current and Non-Current Classification
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the time when each asset or liability is
expected to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the City's
operational cycle. In the case of liabilities where the City does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months, such as
vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be settled within the next 12 months. Inventories held for
trading are classified as current even if not expected to be realised in the next 12 months except for land held for sale where it is held as noncurrent based on the City's intentions to release for sale.

(iii)

AASB 16 Leases

February 2016

1 January 2019

1.24.0 Rounding Off Figures
All figures shown in this budget, other than a rate in the dollar, are rounded to the nearest dollar.
1.25.0 Reporting Currency

Under AASB 16 there is no longer a
distinction between finance and operating
leases. Lessees will now bring to account a
right-to-use asset and lease liability onto their
statement of financial position for all leases.
Effectively this means the vast majority of
operating leases as defined by the current
AASB 117 Leases which currently do not
impact the statement of financial position will
be required to be capitalised on the
statement of financial position once AASB 16
is adopted.
Currently, the City does not have any
operating leases and accordingly there will
be no impact on account of this change.

All figures presented in these financial statements are presented in Australian Currency.
1.26.0 Budget Comparatives
Unless otherwise stated, the Budget comparative figures shown in this annual Financial Report relate to the original Budget adopted by Council and
does not include any subsequent amendments.

(viii)

1.27.0 Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of an Annual Financial Report in uniformity with the Australian Accounting Standards requires arrangement to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, incomes and expenses.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for- December 2016
Profit Entities (incorporating
AASB 2016-7 and AASB 20168)

1 January 2019

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances; the result of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may vary from these estimates.

1.28.0 New Accounting Standards and Interpretations for Application in Future Periods

Whilst it is not possible to quantify the
financial impact (or if it ismaterial) of these
key areas until the details of future
transactions are known, they will all have
application to the City's operations.

The AASB has issued a number of new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory application dates for future
reporting periods, some of which are relevant to the Council.
Management's assessment of the new and amended pronouncements that are relevant to the Council, applicable to future reporting periods and
which have not yet been adopted are set out as follows:

Notes:
(1)
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These standards are likely to have a
significant impact on the income recognition
for NFP's. Key areas for consideration are:
- Assets received below fair value;
- Transfers received to acquire or construct
non-financial assets;
- Grants received;
- Prepaid rates;
- Leases entered into at below market rates;
and
- Volunteer services.

Applicable to reporting periods commencing on or after the given date.

48 | The City of Canning

The City of Canning | 49

2

1.29.0 Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards
During the current year, the City adopted all of the new and revised Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which were compiled,
became mandatory and which were applicable to its operations.
Whilst many reflected consequential changes associate with the amendment of existing standards, the only new standard with
material application is as follows:
(i)

AASB 2015-6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards - Extending
Related Party Disclosures to
Not-for-Profit Public Sector
Entities

December 2016

1 January 2019

The objective of this Standard was to extend
the scope of AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures to include not-for-profit sector
entities.
The Standard has had a significant disclosure
impact on the financial report of the City as
both
Elected
Members
and
Senior
Management are deemed to be Key
Management
Personnel
and
resultant
disclosures in accordance to AASB 124 have
been necessary.

[AASB 10, 124 & 1049]

REVENUES AND EXPENSES
The Revenue and Expenses as reported in the Financial Report includes:

20,608,473

22,810
3,160
25,970

577,710

(58,880)
227,221
1,082
169,423

890,648
1,021,363
1,912,011

0
0
0
0
0
0
760,000
175,000
8,430,187
0
0
9,365,187
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Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
Charging as Expenses
Depreciation on Non-Current Assets
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit of Financial Report
- Audit of Project Acquittals

Interest Expense
Borrowings
Crediting as Revenue
Profit(Loss) on Sale of Non-Current Assets
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Equipment

Interest Earnings
- Municipal Fund
- Other Funds

Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services

Actual
2016/2017
$

19,597,804

20,530,211

35,000
5,000
40,000

32,713
5,383
38,096

478,265

471,021

1,000,001
628,372
0
1,628,373

0
(176,189)
0
(176,189)

856,363
832,923
1,689,286

1,016,966
836,961
1,853,927

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
23,635,747
0
0
23,635,747

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
8,526,821
0
0
8,526,821
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Actual
2015/2016
$
14,691,266 Cash at Bank
15,510 Cash on Hand
40,505,500 Term Deposits
55,212,276 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

General Purpose Funding
Rates Levied, Interest on Late Payment of Rates, General Purpose Grants and Interest Received on Investments.
Governance
Member of Council Allowances and Reimbursements, Civic Functions, Election Expenses and Administration Expenses.
Law, Order, Public Safety
Supervision of various Local Laws, Fire Prevention, Animal Control, Ranger and Security Services, Impounding of Vehicles and Emergency Services.

38,580,010
16,632,266
55,212,276

Health
Environmental Health, Food Control, Pest Control, Immunisation Services & Maintenance of Maternal Infant Health Clinics.

Actual
2016/2017
$
7,764,111
15,569
45,048,000
52,827,680

Represented by:Restricted Cash
Unrestricted Cash

40,105,174
12,722,506
52,827,680

The following restrictions on cash have been imposed by regulations or other imposed requirements; details of the restrictions can be obtained
from the note number referenced next to each item.

Education and Welfare
Pre-Schools and other Education. Care of Families and Children, Senior Citizens Centres, Day Care Centres, Meals on Wheels, Home Help,
Transport Services, Family Support and Multicultural Centre Activities.

Actual
2015/2016
$
6,225,110
4,973,171
3,072,969
1,720,299
8,585,501

Housing
Aged Persons Residence, Accommodation for People with Disabilities and Staff Housing.
Community Amenities
Refuse Collection Services, Landfill Site Operations, Protection of the Environment, Administration of the Town Planning Scheme and Urban
Stormwater and Drainage Works.

664,621
133,446
6,206,530
0
57,223
0
47,071
0
0
160,187
991,169
1,184,865
2,783,692
1,774,156
38,580,010

Recreation and Culture
Maintenance of Halls, Swimming Pool, Recreation Centres, Reserves, Libraries, Golf course, Recreation Equipment Hire and Other Culture.

Transport
Maintenance of Roads, Drainage Works, Footpaths, Street Lighting, Parking Facilities, Crossovers, Verge Maintenance and Street Sweeping.

Economic Services
Weed Control, Area Promotion, Implementation of Building Controls, Swimming Pool Inspections, Plant Nursery Operations and Concrete Batching
Operations.
Other Property and Services
Private Works, Town Planning Schemes, Public Works Overheads, Plant Operations, Materials, Salaries and Wages Controls and Other Unclassified
Activities.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

5

Actual
2016/2017
$
3,484,768
7,688,136
1,002,703
1,723,013
11,419,921

Note
Reserve Fund - Land and Buildings (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Waste Management (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Aged Persons Homes (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Insurance (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Infrastructure (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Local Government & Organisational Reform
(Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Sustainability (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - City Centre (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Bentley Regeneration (Restricted Cash)
Reserve Fund - Property Surveillance and Security (Cash Backed)
Reserve Fund - Canning Vale Specified Area Rate (Cash Backed)
Reserve Fund - Underground Power Service Charge (Cash Backed)
Reserve Fund - Efficiency Investment Reserve
Unspent Loan Funds
Other - (Town Planning Scheme 23 and 24) (Restricted Cash)
Kerb and Footpath Deposits
Crossover Construction Fees
Canning Lodge Accommodation Bonds
Unspent Grants

8(a)
8(b)
8(c)
8(d)
8(e)
8(f)

0
78,056
5,804,502
0
11,644
0
52,686
1,217,832
0
164,385
1,088,144
1,106,390
2,991,142
2,271,852
40,105,174

8(g)
8(h)
8(i)

8(l)
8(m)
7(b)
31
28
28
28
5

UNSPENT GRANTS
The following details Grants recognised as revenues during the financial year in respect of which expenditure had not been made and is to be
carried forward and expenditure will be incurred in the 2016/2017 financial year:
Conditions Over Grants/Contributions

Grant/Contribution
Operating Grants/Contributions
Governance
Events Grants
Grant Commission
Metropolitan LG Youth Grant - Traineeship
Law, Order & Public Safety
Cat Act Sterilisation Program-Grant
Govt Grant-Clean Street Project-Graffiti
Govt Grant-FESA
Government Grant-Neighbourhood Watch
Govt Grant-Bushfire Ready

Balance
30-Jun-15
$

Received
2015-2016
$

Expended
2015-2016
$

Balance
30-Jun-16
$

Received
2016-2017
$

Expended
2016-2017
$

Balance
30-Jun-17
$

0
0
0

107,870
972,005
0

107,870
972,005
0

0
0
0

49,134
2,983,387
17,234

49,134
2,983,387
1,105

0
0
16,129

19,168
4,259
14,146
0
0

0
20,000
37,113
0

19,168
16,004
47,123
0

0
8,255
4,136
0
0

0
0
46,030
2,727
0

0
8,255
39,152
2,727
0

0
0
11,014
0
0
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PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE

0
0

1,000
0

0
0

1,000
0

0
19,946

1,000
18,617

0
1,329

Education and Welfare
Govt Grant DLGC-Families Fiesta-Early Years
Community Visitor Scheme- Grant Funding
Nomad Grant - Youth Services
Grant Youth Activities-DLGC
YCAN Youth Forum Project-Grant
Various grant for Care Services

5,259
15,744
0
0
0
0

0
28,889
0
0
0
11,360,169

5,259
44,633
0
0
0
11,360,169

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
29,293
25,000
5,000
12,000
11,373,266

0
29,293
0
5,000
4,149
11,373,266

0
0
25,000
0
7,851
0

Community Amenities
Grant-Ranford Road Bushland NRM
Grant-Riverbank Drain Swales-Shelley/R.moyne F.sho
Centenary Ave Foreshore Riverbank Grant
State Natural Res Grant (Black Creek)
Govt Grant-Department of Education-Education

4,453
9,060
0
25,000
0

0
152,000
10,000
95,843

4,453
9,060
140,167
35,000
95,843

0
0
11,833
0
0

0
0
0
0
95,843

0
0
8,493
0
95,843

0
0
3,340
0
0

0
0

30,000
78,340

30,000
78,340

0
0

30,000
111,176

30,000
111,176

0
0

Asset by Class
Land and Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
TOTAL

691,853

588,787

764,629

516,011

0

516,011

0

Disposal information for the year 2015/2016

0

400,000

375,259

24,741

0

0

24,741

Recreation
Govt Grant - Club Development
Grant DSR-Kidsport Program
Transport
Federal Assisted Grant
Other Property & Service
Grant WALGCC Bridge Maintenance

(a)

Sale of Assets
In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 36(1)(e), the following information is provided in relation to the disposal
of assets by assets class.
Disposal information for the year 2016/2017
Proceeds
Sale of Assets
2016/2017
2016/2017
Adopted
Budget
Actual
$
$

0
0

332,754
0

0
0

332,754
0

0
200,000

9,334
0

323,420
200,000

Asset by Class
Land and Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
TOTAL

Transport
Federal Assisted Grant (14/15)
Metropolitan Local Road Fund (Untied)
Metropolitan Local Road Fund (Improve)
Metropolitan Local Road Fund (Tied Improve)
Black Spot State (13/14)
Bunnings Cont-Grose RAB and SLR
Black Spot(13/14)
Metropolitan Local Rd fund (improvement)
PTA Q/Pk Precinct Streetscape Project
Metropolitan Local Road Fund (Rehab)
Metropolitan Local Road Fund (Improve)
PTA Grant Ranford Road Bus Lane
PBN Local Government Grant
Black spot Federal
City of Canning - Loan - Cecil/Albany

Total Operating
Total Capital
Total grant and contributions unspent

321,489
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
375,000
0
0
0
0
0
0

788,942
696,489
1,485,431

0
233,700
400,000
1,466,667
134,000
1,563,636
345,089
1,400,000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

13,882,016
5,875,846
19,757,862

321,489
104,826
0
74,212
85,269
0
14,561
55,334
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

14,104,982
655,691
14,760,673

0
128,874
400,000
1,392,455
48,731
1,563,636
330,528
1,344,666
375,000
0
0
0
0
0
0

565,976
5,916,645
6,482,621

0
0
0
0
10,000
156,364
24,924
0
0
830,032
200,000
110,000
235,250
43,200
3,400,000

14,800,036
5,209,770
20,009,806

0
128,874
0
1,392,455
48,731
466,798
26,533
84,076
375,000
0
71,227
87,737
0
0
56,079

15,276,608
2,746,844
18,023,452

0
0
400,000
0
10,000
1,253,202
328,919
1,260,590
0
830,032
128,773
22,263
235,250
43,200
3,343,921
0
89,405
8,379,571
8,468,975

0
0
617,855
617,855

Proceeds
Sale of Assets
2015/2016
2015/2016
Adopted
Budget
Actual
$
$

Capital Grants/Contributions towards the Development of Assets
Recreation
DSR Grant-Canning Vale Reg Sport-Tech Studies
DSR Grant-WA Eight Ball Fed - Roof Restoration

1,000,001
0
904,582
1,904,583

(b)

2,510,400
0
1,001,266
3,511,666

Written Down
Value
2016/2017
2016/2017
Adopted
Budget
Actual
$
$
0
0
276,210
276,210

366,541
0
427,503
794,044

Written Down
Value
2015/2016
2015/2016
Adopted
Budget
Actual
$
$

0
1,082
764,277
765,359

0
0
276,210
276,210

58,880
0
537,056
595,936

Gain(Loss)
on Disposal
2016/2017
Adopted
Budget
$

2016/2017
Actual
$

1,000,001
0
628,372
1,628,373

Gain(Loss)
on Disposal
2015/2016
Adopted
Budget
$

(366,541)
0
190,352
(176,189)

2015/2016

2,510,400
0
725,056
3,235,456

(58,880)
1,082
227,221
169,423

Property, Plant and Equipment
Actual
2015/2016
$

Actual
2016/2017
$
74,348,300

$
70,130,500
(5,070,000)

65,060,500

Building (Independent valuation-2014)
Buildings (At cost - 2015)
Buildings (At cost - 2016)
Building (Independent valuation-2017)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

0
0
0
238,385,759
(87,453,986)

150,931,773

Land (Independent valuation-2017)
Less: Reclassified as Land Held for Resale

$

227,900,560
5,198,729
3,802,826
0
(112,800,094)

124,102,021

11,951,050
(10,095,900)

1,855,150

Furniture and Fittings (Independent valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

12,747,967
(10,651,459)

2,096,508

21,579,735
(11,885,242)

9,694,493

Plant and Equipment (Independent Valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

21,202,144
(12,814,751)

8,387,393

0
209,999,964
171,388

Tools (Management Valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property Plant and Equipment Assets
Buildings (Work in Progress at Cost)

92,515
(92,515)

92,515
(92,515)

210,171,352 Total Property Plant and Equipment Assets including WIP
For further details on Council‟s Policy on Accounting for Fixed Assets refer to Note 1.3.0 "Non-Current Assets - Valuations
and Depreciation”.
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Actual
$

0
226,476,174
316,069
226,792,243
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(c)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Infrastructure Assets
Actual
2015/2016

Movements in Carrying Amounts
Year ended 30 June 2017

Balance at the beginning of the
year
Additions

Land

Buildings

$

Work in
Progress
Buildings
$

$

Furniture
and
Equipment
$

Plant
and
Equipment
$

Total

124,102,021

171,388

1,855,150

9,694,493

210,171,352

680,000

2,957,014

316,068

796,917

1,933,404

6,683,403

0

Increase / (Decrease) in
Residents
Equity Retirement Villages

0

Disposals

0

151,316

(151,316)

(861,000)
(346,469)

0

0

0

0

(20,071)

0

0
(427,504)

0

(861,000)
(794,044)

Revaluation Increments/
(decrements)

(4,897,800)

31,084,984

0

0

0

26,187,184

Reclassification of assets

(5,070,000)

0

0

0

0

(5,070,000)

0

(6,156,093)

0

(555,559)

(2,813,000)

(9,524,652)

Carrying Amount at the end of
Year

65,060,500

150,931,773

316,069

2,096,508

8,387,393

226,792,243

Year ended 30 June 2016

Land

Buildings

$

$

Depreciation Expense

Balance at the beginning of the
year

Work in
Progress
Buildings
$

Furniture
and
Equipment
$

Plant
and
Equipment
$

Total

$
476,161,795
(146,956,762)

329,749,365

329,205,033

56,476,077
(22,535,744)

33,940,333

Infrastructure - Footpath & Cycleways (management valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

57,471,706
(23,901,918)

33,569,788

128,621,694
(59,075,814)

69,545,880

Infrastructure - Drainage (management valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

130,080,261
(61,290,420)

68,789,841

44,712,807
(30,095,091)

14,617,716

Infrastructure - Bridges (management valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

45,159,936
(31,000,935)

14,159,001

84,099,803
(20,428,442)

63,671,361

Infrastructure - Recreation Facilities (management valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

86,638,427
(22,025,679)

64,612,748

11,718,827
(5,936,364)

5,782,463

11,825,686
(6,524,615)

5,301,071

1,679,960
(1,679,960)

Infrastructure - Roads (management valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

0

1,835,081

10,402,856

213,520,134

Additions

0

2,122,865

171,388

318,210

3,241,560

5,854,023

Capitalisation of WIP

0

1,679,960

0

0

0

Increase in Residents
Equity Retirement Villages

0

(155,800)

0

0

Disposals

0

(58,880)

0

Revaluation Increments/
(decrements)

0

155,800

Infrastructure - Other (management valuation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Infrastructure - Work In Progress (At Cost)
Less: Capitalised

8,278,558
0
523,916,040

For further details on Council‟s Policy on Accounting for Fixed Assets refer to Note 1.3.0 "Non-Current Assets - Valuations
and Depreciation”.
Movements in Carrying Amounts
Roads

Footpath &
Cycleways
$

$
Balance at the beginning of the
year

Drainage

Bridges

$

$

Recreation
Facilities
$

Infrastructure
Other
$

WIP

Total

$

$

329,749,365

33,940,333

69,545,880

14,617,716

63,671,361

5,782,463

0

517,307,118

Additions

5,162,906

430,868

172,350

0

1,690,969

18,320

8,278,558

15,753,971

1,679,960

Disposals

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(155,800)

Revaluation Increments/
(decrements)

5,827

339,404

695,460

146,177

644,401

29,241

0

1,860,510

0

(537,056)

(595,936)

Depreciation Expense

(5,713,065)

(1,140,817)

(1,623,849)

(604,892)

(1,393,983)

(528,953)

0

(11,005,559)

0

108,501

(751,987)

(487,686)

Carrying Amount at the end of
Year

329,205,033

33,569,788

68,789,840

14,159,001

64,612,748

5,301,071

8,278,558

523,916,040

(6,575,820)

0

(406,642)

(2,660,880)

(9,643,342)

124,102,021

171,388

1,855,150

9,694,493

210,171,352

Year ended 30 June 2016

Roads

Footpath &
Cycleways
$

$

74,348,300

$

517,307,118 Total Infrastructure Assets

Year ended 30 June 2017

126,933,897

Carrying Amount at the end of
Year

$

$

74,348,300

Depreciation Expense

$
470,902,984
(141,153,619)

$

74,348,300

Capitalisation of WIP

Actual
2016/2017

Balance at the beginning of the
year
Additions

Drainage

Bridges

$

$

Recreation
Facilities
$

Infrastructure
Other
$

WIP

Total

$

$

325,791,116

33,359,931

69,560,938

14,981,703

61,925,688

5,193,146

1,679,960

512,492,482

8,330,269

1,227,011

944,227

0

1,069,623

1,087,895

0

12,659,025

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,679,960)

(1,679,960)

1,551,264

459,197

641,705

234,916

1,892,145

21,476

0

4,800,703

(5,923,284)

(1,105,805)

(1,600,990)

(598,903)

(1,216,095)

(520,054)

0

(10,965,131)

329,749,365

33,940,333

69,545,880

14,617,716

63,671,361

5,782,463

0

517,307,118

The Land component of the Assets does not include Land held for Resale. Transactions relating to Land Held for Resale are shown at Note 19.
Disposals
Revaluation Increments/
(decrements)
Depreciation Expense
Carrying Amount at the end of
Year

Page 23

Page 22

56 | The City of Canning

(d)

The City of Canning | 57

7

Intangible Assets
Actual
2015/2016
$
0
0

Business Systems Software (At Cost)
Less: Amortisation

0 Total Infrastructure Assets

Actual
2016/2017
$
2,152,735
0

(a)

BORROWINGS
Unspent balance of money borrowed in a previous financial year
In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 48, the unspent balance of money borrowed in a previous financial years is nil. Details of Loan
Funds remaining Unspent for the current financial year are detailed in Note 7(b).

(b)

2,152,735

Loans Raised in Financial Year
The City did not raise any new loan in the 2016/2017 financial year;
Loans Raised in Financial Year

Movements in Carrying Amounts

Year ended 30 June 2017

Program

Business
Systems
Software

Additions
Amortisation Expense
Carrying Amount at the end of Year

Principal Borrowed
Adopted
Actual
Budget
2016/2017
2016/2017
$
$

Amount Spent
Adopted
Actual
Budget
2016/2017
2016/2017
$
$

Unspent Loan Funds
Adopted
Actual
Budget
2016/2017
2016/2017
$
$

Recreation and Culture

$
Balance at the beginning of the year

Loan
No.

0

Riverton
Leisureplex

715,000

715,000

715,000

715,000

0

0

SUB TOTAL

715,000

715,000

715,000

715,000

0

0

2,152,735
0
2,152,735
(c)

Loan Repayments
Council‟s Loan Liability is summarised as follows:
Program

Loan
No.

Principal

Loans
Raised

1/07/2016
$

2016/2017
$

Interest
Adopted
Actual
Budget
2016/2017
2016/2017
$
$

Loan Repayment
Adopted
Actual
Budget
2016/2017
2016/2017
$
$

Principal

30/06/2017
$

Community Amenities
SMRC Exit
Funding

237

6,327,104

0

246,919

240,305

1,869,982

1,869,982

4,457,122

73,390

185,627

185,627

1,082,407

74,084

187,382

187,382

1,092,640

234,403

234,403

1,608,290

Economic Services
Underground
Power - Wilson West

236A

1,268,034

0

Underground
Power - Bentley East

236B

1,280,022

0

75,233

Underground
Power - Wilson East

238

0

82,723

1,842,693

73,390

83,200

Recreation & Culture
Riverton
Leisureplex

239

0

715,000

0

41

0

0

715,000

10,717,853

715,000

478,265

471,020

2,477,394

2,477,394

8,955,459

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

10,717,853

715,000

471,020

2,477,394

2,477,394

8,955,459

Current
Non-Current

2,477,394
8,240,459

0
0

0
0

0
0

471,020

2,477,394

2,477,394

SUB TOTAL
LESS Change in Net Accrual

Loan Repayments reimbursed
from external sources
TOTAL

0
10,717,853

478,265

0
0
0
0

478,265
478,265

Page 25

471,020

2,477,394

2,477,394

2,700,409
6,255,050
0
8,955,459
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(d)

RESERVES

Insurance Reserve (Cash Backed)

In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 38 the following Reserve account information is disclosed.
(a)

Purpose : To provide for the liabilities that may arise from the City's external and internal Insurance requirements and to provide funding for various
risk management strategies, including operational safety and health initiatives, that will assist in reducing Insurance Premiums.

Land, Building and Development Reserve (Cash Backed)

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:

Purpose : Acquisition, Development and Improvement of Land and Buildings and make loans to Council's Town Planning Schemes for the purpose of
acquiring Public Open Space, together with investigations and planning associated with Council land holdings and infrastructure including the
development of asset management programs and acquisition of ground water licenses.

Actual
2015/2016
$
1,714,302

Subject to approval by Council, this Reserve may also make funds available for the following:
- To repay or refinance existing loan borrowings
- To provide internal finance as an alternative to external borrowings
- For payments of compensation awarded against the City

47,857
(41,860)

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
1,640,913

Actual
2016/2017
$
1,720,299

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

45,017
(160,000)

45,565
(42,851)

Closing Balance

1,525,930

1,723,013

Opening Balance

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:
Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
7,495,586
1,388,063
(2,658,539)
6,225,110

Actual
2016/2017
$

Opening Balance

4,658,452

6,225,110

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

300,707
(940,000)

357,008
(3,097,350)

Closing Balance

4,019,159

3,484,768

1,720,299
(e)

Purpose : To accumulate funding for Infrastructure Works that are scheduled but may not commence within the current financial year. Funds held in
the Reserve will retain their Capital works identity and be accessed in a future period when Capital works commence, the exceptions to this
requirement is that funds can be reallocated by Council resolution to meet higher priority Capital works needs. If funds are reallocated by Council
resolution they can only be applied against Infrastructure Capital Works in accordance with this reserve fund.
The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:
Actual
2015/2016
$
5,340,013

Transfer from Reserve balance above include transer of $810,331 to Bentley Regenaration Reserve.
The Council has committed funds within the Land, Building and Development Reserve detailed below;
Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

(b)

Actual
2016/2017
$

6,225,110

Details
- General Purpose Land, Building and Development

4,019,159

3,484,768

6,225,110

CLOSING BALANCE

4,019,159

3,484,768

Purpose : Acquisition and Development of Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment and Studies/Investigations associated with the City's Waste
Management.
The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:

1,999,319
(1,261,256)
4,973,171
(c)

Opening Balance
Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
5,290,410

Actual
2016/2017
$
4,973,171

2,445,416
(2,742,729)

135,659
2,579,306

4,993,097

7,688,136

Opening Balance

3,522,254
(276,766)

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

8,585,501

Closing Balance

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
4,735,056

Actual
2016/2017
$
8,585,501

172,795
0

3,896,723
(1,062,303)

4,907,851

11,419,921

The Council has committed funds within the Infrastructure Reserve detailed below;
Actual
2015/2016
$
Details
244,497 - Depot Refurbishment
37,241 - POS Development Bentley / St James
4,552,087 - Sevenoaks St - Dual Carriageway (Acc 53890,53896)
1,200,000 - Bunnings Cont. – Grose RAB and SLR
1,200,000 - Ranford Road- Bus Lane
251,548 - Drain Recontour/Landscaping & Refunds TPS38 (Acc 46831, 57853)
870,434 - Road Rehabilitation & Resurfacing
159,694 - Drainage
70,000 - Parklands for Active Use
0 - Southern Link Road
0 - Kent St Weir Bank Access Provision
8,585,501 CLOSING BALANCE

Waste Management Reserve (Cash Backed)

Actual
2015/2016
$
4,235,108

Infrastructure Reserve (Cash Backed)

(f)

Actual
2016/2017
$
244,497
37,241
3,860,218
889,566
1,200,000
251,548
1,007,157
159,694
70,000
3,400,000
300,000
11,419,921

Local Government & Organisational Reform Reserve (Cash Backed)
Purpose : To fund costs associated with the reform of the Organisation together with State Government reform of the industry including both
structural change and the implementation of integrated planning. Expenditure for payment of costs associated with Inquiries into the City of
Canning may also be funded from this reserve.

Aged and Disabled Services Reserve (Cash Backed)
Purpose : To fund operational and Capital requirements associated with the City's Aged Care and Disability Services.

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:
The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:
Actual
2015/2016
$
4,109,843
1,010,910
(2,047,784)
3,072,969

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
3,351,844

Actual
2016/2017
$
3,072,969

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

560,246
(590,296)

204,875
(2,275,141)

Closing Balance

3,321,794

1,002,703

Opening Balance

Actual
2015/2016
$
3,183,403
71,981
(2,590,763)
664,621

Opening Balance
Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

Transfer from Reserve balance above include transer of $629,658 to Efficiency Investment Reserve.

Page 1
Page 1

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
521,350

Actual
2016/2017
$
664,621

9,197
(530,547)

13,587
(678,208)

0

0
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(j)

Sustainability Reserve (Cash Backed)

Purpose : To retain any surplus funds that may arise from the Property Surveillance and Security Service Charge that will be used to offset future
years charges along with the purchase of plant and equipment used for the service.

Purpose : Expenditure associated with undertaking exemplary projects and practices which comply with the sustainability principles:
1. to reduce the waste of fossil fuels, scarce metals and minerals;
2. to reduce the use of persistent chemicals and synthetic substances;
3. improved management of land, water, wildlife, bushland, soil and ecosystems; or,
4. the education and promotion of sustainability principles.

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:

7,335
(157,892)
133,446
(h)

Opening Balance
Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

0

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
147,440

Actual
2016/2017
$
133,446

5,172
(80,000)

3,112
(58,502)

72,612

78,056

(k)

(i)

Opening Balance

6,206,530

Closing Balance

57,223
0

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

57,223

Closing Balance

82,041
(127,620)

34,012

11,644

Canning Vale Specified Area Rate Reserve (Cash Backed)

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
5,507,252

Actual
2016/2017
$
6,206,530

1,186,744
(1,230,000)

181,851
(583,879)

5,463,996

5,804,502

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

83,104
(49,092)

Opening Balance

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:

Purpose : Planning, development and implementation of the Canning city Centre Regeneration Strategy, including undertaking studies,
investigations, civil works, land purchases and development projects associated with the Canning City Centre.

185,548
(557,703)

0

Actual
2016/2017
$
57,223

Purpose : To retain any surplus funds that may arise from the Canning Vale Specified Area Rate that will be used to offset future years charges along
with the purchase of plant and equipment used for the service.

Canning City Centre Reserve (Cash Backed)

Actual
2015/2016
$
6,578,685

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:
Actual
2015/2016
$
284,003

Property Surveillance and Security Reserve (Cash Backed)

(l)

Actual
2016/2017
$

0

Opening Balance

0

0

0
0

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

0
0

0
0

0

Closing Balance

0

0

Underground Power Service Charge Reserve (Cash Backed)

Purpose : To retain funding for the underground power projects for the suburb localities within the City, to offset future years charges and for
initiatives including the feasibility, delivery and enhancement of community facilities, public open space and infrastructure.

Bentley Regeneration Reserve (Cash Backed)

The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:

Purpose : To provide funding for the urban regeneration of the suburb localities of Bentley and St James, for initiatives including the feasibility,
delivery and enhancement of community facilities, public open space and infrastructure.
The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:
Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
0
50,489
(50,489)
0

Opening Balance

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
Opening Balance

0

Actual
2016/2017
$
47,071

47,071
0

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

0
0

5,615
0

47,071

Closing Balance

0

52,686

0

Actual
2016/2017
$
0

0

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

34,200
(680,000)

810,331
(810,331)

Closing Balance

(645,800)

0

Since the financial year 2014-2015 all projects funded from Bentley Regeneration Reserve were supported by providing loan funds from Land and
Building Reserve. As at 30 June 2017 a total loan fund of $1,133,553 was provided by Land and Building Reserve which will be repaid from future
revenue of Bentley Regeneration Reserve.

(m)

Efficiency Investment Reserve (Cash Backed)
Purpose: To fund costs associated with projects aimed towards improving the City's organisation efficiencies.
The transactions of the Reserve Fund are summarised as follows:
Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
0

Opening Balance

0
0
0

Actual
2016/2017
$
0

0

Transfer to Reserve
Transfer from Reserve

2,287,876
0

2,417,832
(1,200,000)

Closing Balance

2,287,876

1,217,832

Transfer to Reserve balance above include transer of $629,658 from Local Government and Organisational Reform Reserve.
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(n)

Summary of Reserve Balances
Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
6,225,110
4,973,171
3,072,969
1,720,299
8,585,501
664,621
133,446
6,206,530
0
57,223
0
47,071
0

Land, Building and Development Reserve (Cash Backed)
Waste Management Reserve (Cash Backed)
Aged and Disabled Services Reserve (Cash Backed)
Insurance Reserve (Cash Backed)
Infrastructure Reserve (Cash Backed)
Local Government & Organisational Reform Reserve (Cash Backed)
Sustainability Reserve (Cash Backed)
Canning City Centre Reserve (Cash Backed)
Bentley Regeneration Reserve (Cash Backed)
Property Surveillance and Security Reserve (Cash Backed)
Canning Vale Specified Area Rate Reserve (Cash Backed)
Underground Power Service Charge Reserve (Cash Backed)
Efficiency Investment Reserve

31,685,941

The following Asset Revaluation Surplus has resulted from the revaluation of Council Assets in accordance with the AASB 116 - "Property, Plant and
Equipment”.

Actual
2016/2017
$

4,019,159
4,993,097
3,321,794
1,525,930
4,907,851
0
72,612
5,463,996
(645,800)
34,012
0
0
2,287,876

3,484,768
7,688,136
1,002,703
1,723,013
11,419,921
0
78,056
5,804,502
0
11,644
0
52,686
1,217,832

25,980,527

32,483,261

The Asset Revaluation Surplus is not Cash Backed and future transactions on the Surplus will be in accordance with Note 1.3.0 “Non Current Assets Valuation and Depreciation”.
The amount in the Asset Revaluation Surplus is represented by the following Asset Class balances:
Opening
Balance

It is anticipated the Reserves will be utilised as follows:

Council would expect further transfers to be made to and from all Reserves as funds are utilised.

Progressively over the next 10 Years
Progressively over the next 10 Years
Progressively over the next 5 Years
Progressively over the next 10 Years
Progressively over the next 5 Years
Has been utilised in full during the year
Progressively over the next 5 Years
Progressively over the next 10 Years
Progressively over the next 5 Years
Progressively over the next 5 Years
Progressively over the next 5 Years
Progressively over the next 5 Years

Revaluation
(Decrement)

Closing
Balance

74,534,224

0

(4,897,800)

69,636,424

Buildings

46,907,341

31,084,984

0

77,992,325

Furniture & Equipment

583,819

0

0

583,819

Plant & Equipment

854,976

0

0

854,976

185,763,694

5,827

0

185,769,521

Infrastructure - Footpaths and Cycleways

25,233,121

339,404

0

25,572,525

Infrastructure - Drainage

54,673,548

695,460

0

55,369,008

Infrastructure - Bridges

14,677,694

146,177

0

14,823,871

Infrastructure - Recreational Facilities

17,163,073

644,401

0

17,807,474

4,084,220

29,241

0

4,113,461

424,475,710

32,945,494

(4,897,800)

452,523,404

Infrastructure - Other

9

Revaluation
Increment

Land

Infrastructure - Roads

All of the above Reserve Accounts are Cash Backed and are disclosed as Restricted Cash Assets in Note 4 of the
Financial Statements.

Land, Building and Development Reserve (Cash Backed)
Waste Management Reserve (Cash Backed)
Aged and Disabled Services Reserve (Cash Backed)
Insurance Reserve (Cash Backed)
Infrastructure Reserve (Cash Backed)
Local Government & Organisational Reform Reserve (Cash Backed)
Sustainability Reserve (Cash Backed)
Canning City Centre Reserve (Cash Backed)
Bentley Regeneration Reserve (Cash Backed)
Property Surveillance Reserve (Cash Backed)
Canning Vale Specified Area Rate (Cash Backed)
Underground Power Reserve (Cash Backed)

Revaluation Surplus

CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Reconciliation of cash flows from operations with change in net result from operations.
For the purpose of this statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and deposits with Banks or Financial Institutions.

Actual
2015/2016
$
986,618

Change in net Result from operations

20,608,473
(169,423)
(9,365,187)
0

Non cash flows in change in Net Equity
Depreciation
Profit/loss on sale of Fixed Assets
Government Revenue
Bad Debt Expense

1,776,597
0
(497)
0
(4,857,228)
(206,748)
8,772,605

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
23,985,228

Actual
2016/2017
$
4,092,960

19,597,804
(1,628,373)
(23,635,747)

20,530,211
176,189
(8,526,821)
179,001

Change in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Development Cost Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions

802,166
0
(6,913)
0
(1,638,087)
0

(499,580)
36,114
68,492
(310,506)
(520,612)
(679,965)

Cash flows from Operations

17,476,078

14,545,483

Reconciliation of Cash
14,706,776
40,505,500
55,212,276

Cash at Bank
Investments - Current
TOTAL CASH

7,779,680
45,048,000
52,827,680
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TRUST FUND INFORMATION

11
TRUST FUND
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 30 JUNE 2017

PARTICULARS

RECEIPTS
ADOPTED
ACTUAL
BUDGET
2016/2017
2016/2017
$
$

OPENING
BALANCE
1/07/2016
$

DEPOSITS
Canning Rugby Club Establish Clubrooms
Wilson Park
Canning Literary Awards

PAYMENTS
ADOPTED
ACTUAL
BUDGET
2016/2017
2016/2017
$
$

In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 36(1)(a) the following information provides details of movements to and from Reserve
Accounts which have not been included in the Income Statement but which have been included in the “Rate Setting Statement”.

CLOSING BALANCE
ADOPTED
ACTUAL
BUDGET
2016/2017
30/06/2017
$
$

INTEREST
2016/2017
$

COMPARISON WITH RATE SETTING BUDGET

635

17

0

0

0

19

634

654

4,634

130

0

0

0

138

3,649

4,772

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE
CONTRIBUTIONS
TPS6 Drainage (Kempe
Hutchinson)
TPS9 (VM & FM Allen)
Public Open Space and Local
Centre Contributions
- TPS 17
- TPS 21
- TPS 23
- TPS 24
- TPS 33

1,660
91

45
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

49
3

1,660
92

1,709
94

1,534,447
6,007,664
1,022,700
86,084
589,702

240,000
1,670,000
29,000
2,400
16,500

239,800
977,275
0
0
0

0
1,000,000
0
0
0

0
201,467
0
0
0

45,553
178,348
30,361
2,556
17,506

1,736,796
6,264,410
1,023,650
86,123
590,028

1,819,800
6,961,820
1,053,061
88,640
607,208

195
43,348

6
1,250

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
1,287

196
43,409

201
44,635

797

25

0

0

0

24

800

821

Dewey St-Private Drainage
Scheme Contribution

25,119

725

0

0

0

746

25,155

25,865

City of Canning Relief Fund

522

20

0

0

0

16

528

538

309,973
3,644
3,077

80
105
9,000

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

9,202
108
91

3,072
3,649
309,800

319,175
3,752
3,168

9,634,292

1,969,306

1,217,075

1,000,000

201,467

286,013

10,093,651

10,935,913

TOWN PLANNING SCHEMES
Town Planning Scheme 28AReimbursement
Town Planning Scheme 30
OTHER
Woodloes Folk Museum

Unclaimed Monies and Returned
Cheques
Sale of-Impounded
Vehicles
SMRC
GST pending
ATO Tax
Ruling
TOTAL

Actual
2016/2017
$

Non Operating Income
Transfer from Reserves
Transfer from Other

7,002,664
141,000

5,916,890
335,629

TOTAL

7,143,664

6,252,519

8,283,756
1,363,017

Non Operating Expenditure
Transfer to Reserves
Transfer Other

7,130,474
142,600

6,714,210
25,964

9,646,773

TOTAL

7,273,074

6,740,174

9,643,053
393,958
10,037,011

Nomination Deposits

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

These funds held at the balance date are funds over which the Council has no control and which are not included in the financial statements.
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RATING INFORMATION

(b)

In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 39, Council has imposed the following Rates:
(a)

Canning Vale Public Open Space Maintenance

General and Minimum Rate

Number of
Properties

GENERAL RATE
Rateable
G.R.V.
Value
Rate in
$
$

CURRENT YEAR ESTIMATED 2016/2017
MINIMUM RATE
Rate
Number of
Minimums
Minimum
Rate
Yield
Properties Rateable Value
$
$
$

To maintain the level of Public Open Space Development at the current standard. Recently established and ongoing subdivisions in Canning Vale, a
suburb located in the South East Corner of the City, adjacent to Ranford Road, all have Public Open Space fully developed and initially provided at
the expense of the respective subdividers.
Yield
$

TOTAL
$

Description of Land
All the land comprised within the area connecting at the north western corner of the intersection of Nicholson Road and Clifton Road then in a north
easterly direction along the north western boundary of Nicholson Road to Nicholson Court then in a north easterly direction along the north western
boundary of Nicholson Court to the south western corner of the intersection of Nicholson Court and the Standard Gauge Railway Reserve then in a
south westerly direction along the southern boundary of the Standard Gauge railway Reserve and Ranford Road then in a south easterly direction
along the north eastern boundary of Ranford Road to the north eastern corner of the intersection of Ranford Road and Wilfred Road then in a south
westerly direction along the south eastern boundary of Wilfred Road to the south eastern corner of the intersection of Wilfred Road and Clifton Road
then in a south easterly direction along the north eastern boundary of Clifton Road to the south eastern corner of the intersection of Clifton Road and
Silicon Road then in a south easterly direction along the north eastern side of Clifton Road to the starting point.

GENERAL RATE

24,114

General Rate GRV

1,123,935,977

0.042890

48,205,614

Minimum Rate
Interim Rates

24,114

SUB TOTAL

1,123,935,977

48,205,614

13,390

194,287,358

13,390

194,287,358

751

10,055,890
10,055,890

48,205,614
10,055,890
525,681
58,787,185

SPECIFIED AREA
Canning Vale POS
- General Rates

3,249

84,483,364

3,249

84,483,364

0.003367

284,455

284,455
0

284,455

284,455

- Surplus C/F
SUB TOTAL

48,490,069

GRAND TOTAL

10,055,890

More commonly known as the "Canning Vale Estates".
Application of Rates Levied

59,071,640

To meet the additional cost of maintaining the Public Open Space developed in the Canning Vale Estates. The Canning Vale Estates ratepayers are
required to contribute approximately 27% of the total amount of maintaining the parklands and street gardens.

CURRENT YEAR ACTUAL 2016/2017
Number of
Properties
GENERAL RATE
General Rate GRV

24,111

GENERAL RATE
Rateable
G.R.V.
Value
Rate in
$
$
1,123,849,367

0.04289

Rate
Yield
$

MINIMUM RATE
Number of
Minimums
Minimum
Rate
Properties Rateable Value
$
$

Yield
$

48,201,905

Minimum Rate
Interim Rates

13,389

194,275,888

13,389

194,275,888

751

10,055,139

Prepaid Rates B/F
Prepaid Rates C/F
SUB TOTAL

24,111

1,123,849,367

48,201,905

10,055,139

TOTAL
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
(2,082)
278,165
276,083

48,201,905
10,055,139
581,967
-596,337
595,232
58,837,906

SPECIFIED AREA
Canning Vale POS
- General Rates
- Interim Rates

3,249

84,483,364

3,249

84,483,364

0.003367

284,455

284,455
482
(21,900)
47,987

284,455

311,024

- (Deficit) / Surplus B/F
- Deficit / (Surplus) C/F
SUB TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL

48,486,360

Specified Area Rates

10,055,139

59,148,930

(23,976)
(73,921)
(59,039)
(141,047)
(297,983)

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
Overspent Balances Carried Forward
Revenue
Less Expenses
Public Open Space & Verge Maintenance
- Canning Vale Oval
- Livingston Estate P.O.S.
- Waratah Estate P.O.S.
- Ranford Estate P.O.S

(21,900) (Overspent) / Unspent Balance Carried Forward
(c)

0
284,455
284,455

Actual
2016/2017
$
(21,900)
284,937
263,037

(24,337)
(81,147)
(69,578)
(109,393)
(284,455)

(27,490)
(87,766)
(67,443)
(128,325)
(311,024)

0

(47,987)

Information about discounts, incentives, concessions and write offs

The Objectives and Reasons for General and Minimum Rate

The following Prizes were donated by the Sponsors of the Rate Payment Incentive Scheme for the 2016/2017 Financial year.

Council imposed a general rate of 0.042890 cents in the Dollar and minimum rate of $751pa, as Council perceives it to be a “reasonable” minimum
level of rates which all ratepayers in its district should pay. The minimum rate reflects the basic cost incurred by the Council in servicing each lot or
dwelling in its district.

* 5 Bank Accounts x $500 each from Commonwealth Bank
* 2 Double Passes for Concert held by the WA Symphony Orchestra
* 8 Gift Cards x$250 each from Stockland Riverton
The total cost of this Incentive Scheme for the City of Canning is nil.
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Annual
Service Charge
2015/2016
$

SERVICE CHARGES

Wilson West

Annual
Service Charge
2016/2017
$

Description
Wilson West Underground Power Annual Charge

1,963.24

(WWM5C) Five dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

1,963.24

2,405.08

(WWM6B) Six dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

2,405.08

Description of Land

3,190.38

(WWM8B) Eight dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

3,190.38

The properties bounded by Centenary Avenue, Manning Road and Leach Highway. This includes properties connected on both sides of Leach
Highway.

4,711.79

(WWM12C) Twelve dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

4,711.79

6,724.23

(WWM17B) Seventeen dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

6,724.23

7,166.06

(WWM18A) Eighteen dwellings on one property with overhead external and
overhead internal power connection

7,166.06

7,951.36

(WWM20A) Twenty dwellings on one property with overhead external and
overhead internal power connection

7,951.36

Pursuant to Section 6.38(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 and Regulation 54 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations, a
Service Charge is imposed for the provision of Underground Electricity within a defined part of the District of Wilson, described as Wilson West.

The Project involved the Design, installation and commissioning of an underground Electricity Supply Distribution System. The Project included the
conversion of all existing Overhead customer service connections to Underground between the property boundary and the property building.

The City has borrowed the sum of $1,923,668 for a term of 10 years to fund the above project.
12,957.42

(WWM33C) Thirty-three dwellings on one property with underground external
and underground internal power connection

12,957.42

13,350.07

(WWM34C) Thirty-four dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

13,350.07

The Loan repayments for the 2016/2017 financial year amounts to $259,017 comprising of :
Interest Repayment
Principal Repayment

$73,390
$185,627
$259,017

The service charge for the area described as Wilson West was imposed on property owners for the first time in the 2011/2012 financial year.
Property owners were given a once only opportunity to make a lump sum payment in 2011/2012 financial year which reduced the amount of loan
funds raised in the 2011/2012 financial year.

The Service Charges imposed for the 2016/2017 financial year are defined as :

The Application of the service Charge levied is summarised as follows:

Annual
Service Charge
2015/2016
$

Description
Wilson West Underground Power Annual Charge

Annual
Service Charge
2016/2017
$

491.02

(WW1) Property with overhead external and overhead internal power connection

491.02

157.27

(WW1A) Property with overhead external and overhead internal power
connection with 85% discount

157.27

405.77

(WW1B) Property with overhead external and overhead internal power
connection with $100 service charge due to multiple dwellings

405.77

441.83

(WW2) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection

441.83

72.01

(WW2A) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with $100 service charge due to multiple dwellings with 85% discount

Actual
2015/2016
$
10,824
258,811
269,635
(176,502)
(83,649)
(260,151)
9,484

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
Unspent Balance Carried Forward
Service Charges Raised
Less Expenses
Loan Repayment Principal
Loan Repayment Interest

Unspent Balance Carried Forward

(185,627)
(73,390)
(259,017)

(185,627)
(73,390)
(259,017)

0

7,998

72.01

405.77

(WW2B) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with $100 service charge due to multiple dwellings

405.77

399.21

(WW2C) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with $50 service charge due to multiple dwellings

399.21

392.65

(WW3) Property with underground external and underground internal power
connection

392.65

58.90

(WW3A) Property with underground external and underground internal power
connection with 85% discount

58.90

58.90

(WW3D) Property with underground external and underground internal power
connection with 85% discount

58.90

108.09

(WW3E) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with 85% discount

108.09

883.67

(WWM2A) Two dwellings on one property with overhead external and overhead
internal power connection

883.67

834.48

(WWM2B) Two dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

834.48

785.30

(WWM2C) Two dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

785.30

1,276.32

(WWM3A) Three dwellings on one property with overhead external and overhead
internal power connection

1,276.32

1,227.13

(WWM3B) Three dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

1,227.13

1,177.95

(WWM3C) Three dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

1,177.95

1,668.98

(WWM4A) Four dwellings on one property with overhead external and overhead
internal power connection

1,668.98

1,570.60

(WWM4C) Four dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

1,570.60

(b )

Bentley East
Pursuant to Section 6.38(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 and Regulation 54 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations, a
Service Charge is imposed for the provision of Underground Electricity within a defined part of the District of Bentley, described as Bentley East.

Description of Land
The properties bounded by Coolgardie Street, Albany Highway, Manning Road and the Brownlie Towers Precinct. This includes properties
connected on both sides of Manning Road but does not include the Brownlie Towers Precinct.
The Project involved the Design, installation and commissioning of an underground Electricity Supply Distribution System. The Project included the
conversion of all existing Overhead customer service connections to Underground between the property boundary and the property building.

The City has borrowed the sum of $1,941,857 for a term of 10 years to fund the above project.
The Loan repayments for the 2016/2017 financial year amounts to $261,466 comprising of :
Interest Repayment
Principal Repayment

$74,084
$187,382
$261,466

The Service Charges imposed for the 2016/2017 financial year are defined as :
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259,017

Actual
2016/2017
$
9,484
257,531
267,015
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Annual
Service Charge
2016/2017
$
457.78

Description
Bentley East Underground Power Annual Charge
(BE1) Property with overhead external and overhead internal power connection

(c )

Wilson East
Pursuant to Section 6.38(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 and Regulation 54 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations, a
Service Charge is imposed for the provision of Underground Electricity within a defined part of the District of Wilson, described as Wilson East.

132.47

(BE1A) Property with overhead external and overhead internal power connection
with 85% discount

132.47

Description of Land

395.23

(BE1B) Property with overhead external and overhead internal power connection
with $100 service charge due to multiple dwellings

395.23

The area is bounded by Leach Highway, Manning Road, Fern Road and the Canning River.

388.97

(BE1C) Property with overhead external and overhead internal power connection
with $50 service charge due to multiple dwellings

388.97

The Project involved the Design, installation and commissioning of an underground Electricity Supply Distribution System. The Project included the
conversion of all existing Overhead customer service connections to Underground between the property boundary and the property building.

420.25

(BE2) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection

420.25
The City expected to spend total cost of $7,804,436 on this project, which was completed under budget in 2015 for a total cost of $7,308,092. The City
project was funded through funds borrowed and amounts paid in lump sum contributions from ratepayers within the scheme area. The City has
borrowed the sum of $2,476,754 for a term of 10 years to fund the above project.

94.94

(BE2A) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with 85% discount

94.94

395.23

(BE2B) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with $100 service charge due to multiple dwellings

395.23

388.97

(BE2C) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with $50 service charge due to multiple dwellings

388.97

The Loan repayments for the 2016/2017 financial year amounts to $317,603 comprising of :

382.73

(BE3) Property with underground external and underground internal power
connection

382.73

Interest Repayment
Principal Repayment

57.41

(BE3A) Property with underground external and underground internal power
connection with 85% discount

57.41

57.41

(BE3D) Property with underground external and underground internal power
connection with 85% discount

57.41

840.50

(BEM2A) Two dwellings on one property with overhead external and overhead
internal power connection

840.50

802.97

(BEM2B) Two dwellings on one property with overhead external and underground
internal power connection

802.97

765.44

(BEM2C) Two dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

765.44

114.82

(BEM2D) Two dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection with 85% discount

189.88

(BEM2E) Two dwellings on one property with overhead external and overhead
internal power connection with 85% discount

$83,200
$234,403
$317,603

The Service Charges imposed for the 2016/2017 financial year are defined as :
Annual
Description
Service Charge
Wilson East Underground Power Annual Charge
2015/2016
$
539.09

Annual
Service Charge
2016/2017
$
539.09

(WE1) Property with overhead external / internal power connection ($600)
476.98

476.98

114.82

(WE1B) Property with overhead external / internal power connection with $100
service charge due to multiple dwellings

501.82

501.82

189.88

(WE2) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection ($300)

476.98

(WE2B) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with $100 service charge due to multiple dwellings

476.98

(WE2C) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection with $50 service charge due to multiple dwellings

470.77

1,223.23

(BEM3A) Three dwellings on one property with overhead external and overhead
internal power connection

1,223.23

470.77

1,185.70

(BEM3B) Three dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

1,185.70

464.56

1,148.17

(BEM3C) Three dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

1,148.17

69.68

(WE3A) Property with underground external / internal power connection ($0)
with 85% discount (some overhead lines remain)

69.68

1,568.42

(BEM4B) Four dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

1,568.42

69.68

(WE3D) Property with overhead external and underground internal power
connection ($0) with 85% discount (the street has underground power)

69.68

1,951.14

(BEM5B) Five dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

1,951.14

1,003.64

(WEM2A) Two dwellings on one property with overhead external / internal power
connection ($600)

1,003.64

2,333.86

(BEM6B) Six dwellings on one property with overhead external and underground
internal power connection

2,333.86

929.12

(WEM2C) Two dwellings on one property with overhead external / internal power
connection ($0)

929.12

2,296.32

(BEM6C) Six dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

2,296.32

139.37

(WEM2E) Two dwellings on one property with underground external / internal
power connection ($0) with 85% discount (some overhead lines remain)

139.37

2,716.58

(BEM7B) Seven dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

2,716.58

2,824.61

(WEM6B) Six dwellings on one property with overhead external and underground
internal power connection ($300)

2,824.61

2,679.05

(BEM7C) Seven dwellings on one property with underground external and
underground internal power connection

2,679.05

4,645.58

(WEM10C) Ten dwellings on one property underground external / internal power
connection ($0)

4,645.58

3,099.30

(BEM8B) Eight dwellings on one property with overhead external and
underground internal power connection

3,099.30

The service charge for the area described as Bentley East was imposed on property owners for the first time in the 2011/2012 financial year.
Property owners were given a once only opportunity to make a lump sum payment which would reduce the amount of loan funds to be raised, or
elect to make annual payments over a ten year period commencing in the 2012/2013 financial year.
Actual
2015/2016
$
6,048
466
260,139
266,653
(178,171)
(84,440)
(262,611)
4,042

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
(Unspent)/Overspent Balance Brought Forward
Service Charge Raised - Lump sum
Service Charge Raised
Less Expenses
Loan Repayment Principal
Loan Repayment Interest

Unspent/(Overspent) Balance Carried Forward

0
0
262,615
262,615

Actual
2016/2017
$
4,042
0
265,175
269,217

(187,382)
(75,233)
(262,615)

(187,382)
(74,084)
(261,466)

0

7,751

464.56
(WE3) Property with underground external / internal power connection ($0)

24,621.56

(WEM53C) Fifty-three dwellings on one property with underground external /
internal power connection ($0)

24,621.56

The service charge for the area described as Wilson East was imposed on property owners for the first time in the 2013/2014 financial year.
Property owners were given a once only opportunity to make a lump sum payment which would reduce the amount of loan funds to be raised, or
elect to make annual payments over a ten year period commencing in the 2013/2014 financial year.
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Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$
2,915
0

26,612
323,033
352,560
0
(225,724)
(93,290)
(319,014)
33,546

(e)

Unspent / (Overspent) Balance Carried Forward
Borrowings Undertaken
Service Charge Raised - Lump sum
Service Charge Raised
Less Expenses
Payment to Western Power
Loan Repayment Principal
Loan Repayment Interest

Actual
2016/2017
$
0

33,546

0
0

0
0

317,126
317,126

320,996
354,542

0

Unspent/(Overspent) Balance Carried Forward

14

INTEREST CHARGES FOR THE LATE PAYMENT OF RATES AND CHARGES

(1)

Pursuant to Section 6.51 of the Local Government Act and Financial Management Regulation 43(a) the City of Canning
imposed the following rate of interest applicable for the late payment of rates and service charges and applied as follows:
(a)

(i)
(ii)

0

(234,403)
(82,723)
(317,126)

(234,403)
(83,200)
(317,603)

0

36,939

(b)

Where an election has been made to pay the rate charge by instalments and an instalment remains unpaid
after its due and payable.
The rate of interest to apply is 10% and the estimated revenue from the imposition of the interest was as follows:

Pursuant to Section 6.38(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 and Regulation 54 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations, a Service Charge of
$48 per property was imposed for the first time in 2013-14 for the provision of a 24 hour property surveillance and security service throughout the City.

Income
Service charge income ($54.90 per property)
Other income
Less Expenses
Subscriptions (CCTV/GPS)
Administration
CCTV and Community Safety Initiatives
Non Recurrent items
Vehicle operating and misc equipment replacement
Employee related expenditure

165,225

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
2,062,438
3,075
2,065,513

Actual
2016/2017
$
2,080,284
1,780
2,082,064

(9,000)
(11,450)
(45,000)
(66,292)
(94,400)
(1,822,394)
(2,048,536)

(9,013)
(19,358)
(38,277)
(127,620)
(90,073)
(1,843,302)
(2,127,643)

37,675

Unspent/(Overspent) Balance Brought Forward

0

57,223

57,223

Unspent/(Overspent) Balance Carried Forward

16,977

11,644

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

The Application of the service charge levied is summarised as follows:

(35,286)
(13,925)
(30,647)
(15,948)
(125,382)
(1,812,419)
(2,033,607)

after it becomes due and payable;
or
35 days after the date of issue of the rate notice

which ever is the later.

Property Surveillance and Security

Actual
2015/2016
$
2,050,575
2,580
2,053,155

Where no election has been made to pay the rate charge by instalments due

Interest Charges for the late Payment of Rates Charged

165,000

(2)

Pursuant to Section 6.45 of the Local Government Act and Financial Management Regulation 43(c) the due dates of
each instalment was as follows:
26-August-2016
1st Instalment
28-October-2016
2nd Instalment
06-January-2017
3rd Instalment
10-March-2017
4th Instalment

15

FEES AND CHARGES INFORMATION

(a)

In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 41, the estimates of total revenue from Fees and Charges for each
program are summarised as follows:
Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

(b)

Actual
2016/2017
$
231,407

Actual
2016/2017
$

298,769
0
217,289
484,326
2,360,028
454,203
16,222,030
10,462,856
143,277
674,582
1,244,667

General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services

5,125
83,920
175,521
232,799
2,286,358
518,941
16,944,192
10,281,284
258,000
890,821
1,179,507

210,285
85,939
211,317
341,890
2,357,776
444,686
16,263,228
9,383,633
97,306
780,877
1,230,672

32,562,027

TOTAL FEES AND CHARGES

32,856,468

31,407,609

Fees and Charges amended during the financial year are as follows:
There were no amendments during the year to Fees & Charges detailed in the original budget for 2016/2017.

(c)

Information about discounts, incentives, concessions and write offs
In accordance with Section 6.12 of the Local Government Act and Financial Management Regulation 42 the City of Canning
provided the following discounts, incentives and write-offs other than those applicable to Rates
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17

Discounts

COUNCIL MEMBERS - FEES, EXPENSES AND ALLOWANCES
In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 44 Fees, Expenses or Allowances paid to Council Members are summarised as follows:

Sporting Club Discounts
A discount of 25% will be given to Clubs for Canning residents and/or ratepayers on fees charged to clubs for their seasonal use of grassed sports
grounds. Such discount is only to be given provided advice and details of residents and/or ratepayer status and number of club members is
received from each club by 15th May for winter sports and 15th November for summer sports each year. It is further required that fees due are paid
by 30th June and 31st December respectively. Such fee to apply to players fees only and not to fees or charges for change rooms, electricity etc. or
to GST requirements.

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

Actual
2016/2017
$

Employee Enhancement Scheme Discounts
The City of Canning has developed an Employment Enhancement Program, which is designed to assist employees in creating a work-life balance to
suit their individual needs. A component of the Employment Enhancement Program allows employees a 100% discount on memberships at the
Riverton and Cannington Leisureplexes.

217,318
16,299
62,481
1,284

Canning River Eco Education Centre
The City of Canning controls the Canning River Eco Education Centre which was completed during 2007/2008. The centre was constructed by the
State Government to assist the community in understanding the complexity of our river environments and to provide a venue from which education
programs could be facilitated and that members of the community could visit to appreciate the different aspects of the river. The City is supports the
increased community awareness of the river and has resolved at it Ordinary Council Meeting held on 22nd April 2008 to provide free use of the
centre to the Department of Environment and Conservation for its School Holiday Program "Nearer to Nature."

Actual
2015/2016
$
16,800
132,879
2,996
152,675

Actual
2015/2016
$
49,677

16

Actual
2016/2017
$
15,800
121,308
3,203

Discounts Allowed
Sporting Club Discounts
Employee Enhancement Scheme Discounts
Canning River Eco Education Centre
Total Value of Discounts Allowed

140,311

27,078
1,708
0
1,636
61,574
13,589

18

313,640
47,046
0
5,000

313,627
23,522
0
0

- Telecommunication, Travel and Information Technology Allowance
- Information and Communication Technology (*reg 5.99A, as determined by SAT)
-Information Technology Allowance - $3,500 per annum
38,500
-Travel Expenses
3,000
Clothing Expense
1,650
-Other Re-imbursements
2,500
-Annual Local Government Allowance
-Mayor
88,864
-Deputy Mayor
22,216

38,500
6,479
5,028
3,265
88,860
22,215

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Compensation Disclosure

Actual
2017

The total of remuneration paid to KMP of the City during the year are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

Actual
2016/2017
$
82,839

Total amount written off.

-Annual Attendance Fee
Councillor (10) - $31,364 per annum
Mayor
-$47,046 per annum
Commissioner Remuneration (4)
Audit Committee Expenses

$

1,185,032
139,938
0
836,613
2,161,583

Short-term employee benefits
These amounts include all salary, paid leave, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP except for details in respect to fees and benefits paid
to elected members which may be found at Note 17.

INTEREST EARNED ON INVESTMENTS

Post-employment benefits
These amounts are the current-year's estimated cost of providing for the City's superannuation contributions made during the year.

In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 49 the Earnings from Investments are summarised as follows:

Actual
2015/2016
$
890,648 General Account
89,104 Entry Contributions Canning Lodge
Reserve Funds
273,063 - Land and Buildings
120,782 - Aged Persons Homes
138,453 - Waste Management
47,857 - Insurance
172,254 - Infrastructure
71,981 - Local Government Reform
4,089 - Other - (Town Planning Scheme No 23 & 24)
185,549 - Canning City Centre
7,335 - Sustainability
0 - Property Surveillance & Security Levy
0 - Underground Power
0 - Bentley Regeneration
2,001,115 TOTAL

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$
856,363
0

Actual
2016/2017
$
927,237
89,729

115,706
123,000
134,434
45,017
172,795
9,197
6,600
186,744
5,172
58
0
34,200

175,766
78,868
135,659
45,565
196,723
13,587
4,199
181,851
3,112
894
737
0

1,689,286

1,853,927

Other long-term benefits
These amounts represent long service benefits accruing during the year.
Termination benefits
These amounts represent termination benefits paid to KMP (Note: may or may not be applicable in any given year).
Related Parties
The City's main related parties are as follows:
i. Key management personnel
Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any
elected member, are considered key management personnel.
Transactions with related parties
The City did not have any other reportable related party transactions other than Key Management Personnel compensation disclosed above.
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DEPRECIATION ON NON-CURRENT ASSETS

23

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Depreciation charge included in the Financial Statements are summarised as follows:

(a)

Financial Assets and Liabilities

872,354
159,843
25,995
584,963
374,065
1,205,523
5,897,796
9,975,952
15,199
1,496,783

Governance
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services

20,608,473 TOTAL
20

The City held the following Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30th June.

Adopted
Budget
2016/2017
$

Actual
2015/2016
$

Actual
2016/2017
$

853,001
136,900
21,300
551,101
369,100
1,453,696
5,374,365
9,390,739
15,201
1,432,401

919,162
167,102
19,698
652,404
327,912
1,250,666
5,570,433
9,898,883
13,700
1,710,251

19,597,804

20,530,211

MAJOR LAND TRANSACTIONS

2015/2016
Fair
Carrying
Value
Value
$
$

(b)

2016/2017
Carrying
Fair
Value
Value
$
$

55,212,276
4,798,771
60,011,047

Financial Assets
55,212,276 Cash and Cash Equivalents
4,798,771 Trade Receivables-Current
60,011,047

52,827,680
5,747,047
58,574,727

52,827,680
5,747,047
58,574,727

11,885,345
2,477,394
8,240,459
22,603,198

Financial Liabilities
11,885,345 Accounts Payable - Current
2,477,394 Borrowings - Current
7,931,115 Borrowings - Non Current
22,293,854

11,364,733
2,700,409
6,255,050
20,320,192

11,364,733
2,700,409
5,442,418
19,507,560

Interest Rate Risk
The following table details the City of Canning‟s exposure to interest rate risks as at 30th June 2017.

The City has received an offer to purchase the Cannington Transit Orientated Development Site. The Cannington sale has progressed to the
execution of a contract with the settlement expected to be in May 2018.
Actual
2015/2016
$

Budget
2016/2017
$

Programme: Other Property and Services

0
0

Expenditure:
Transfer to Bentley Regeneration Reserve
Transfer to City Centre Reserve

0
0

Funding
Proceeds from Sale of Land

0

Actual
2016/2017
$

0
1,000,001

0
0

1,000,001

0

1,000,001

0

1,000,001

0

Budget
2016/2017
0

21

Land Held for Resale (At Fair Value)

Non-Current

5,070,000

Financial Assets
Cash
Investments
Trade Receivables-Current

Financial Liabilities
Accounts Payable - Current
Borrowings

1.40
2.72

3.90

$

Non
Interest
Bearing
$

Total
$

7,764,111
45,048,000
0
52,812,111

0
0
0
0

15,569
0
5,747,047
5,762,616

7,779,680
45,048,000
5,747,047
58,574,727

0
2,700,409
2,700,409

0
6,255,050
6,255,050

11,364,733
0
11,364,733

11,364,733
8,955,459
20,320,192

(c)

Council does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor under any financial instruments entered into.

(d)

The aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the notes
to and forming part of the Annual Financial Statements.

(e)

Investment of Council Funds:
The Council's Investment Policy (AF306) was reviewed during 2014/15. In part, policy states the following;
Council funds may be invested in one or more of the following approved financial products:
- Fixed Term Deposits
- Commercial Bank Bills
- Government Bonds
- Town Planning Schemes - Public Open Space Acquisition

TRADING UNDERTAKINGS
Council did not participate in any trading undertakings.

22

Actual
2016/2017
0

Current
$

The offer to purhcase the Cannington Transit Orientated Development Site relates to 6 land parcels in Cecil Avenue and Lake Street. These lots were
carried as non-current land assets and due to the expected sale of these land parcels during 2017-18 financial year they have been classified as
current assets as land held for resale.
Actual
2015/2016

Average
Interest
%

CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

Council's Policy allows for funds to be invested with the following financial institutions:

Council did not have any Capital or Leasing Commitments.

- Licensed Australian Banks with current long term Standard and Poors (S&P) rating of BBB or better that are Approved Deposit-Taking Institution
(ADI's) as defined under the Banking Act 1959
- Bonds Issued and guaranteed by the Commonwealth, State or Territory Government
- Town Planning Schemes - Public Open Space Acquisition
- Western Australian Treasury Corporation

The City's investments are conducted in accordance with the above policy and it is intended that all investments will be held until their maturity.
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Credit Risk

24

The City's receivables are classified as Rates and Annual Charges, Interest, Goods and Services Tax and General Debtors. Rates and Annual
Charges are charges that are considered as charges against the property and as such are considered being secured by the Property to which they
relate. The City accounts for Interest as part of its receivables as and when investments are made and a commitment from Financial Institutions is
received for payment of the investment earnings. Good and Services Tax represents monies owed by the Australian Taxation Office to the City. The
City's General Debtors include receivables for goods and services provides to members of the community, government departments and
businesses. The City has exposure to credit risk in that debtors may not be able to meet their commitments to repay debts. The City reviews its
outstanding debts regularly and commences a variety of recovery techniques in accordance with its Debt Recovery Procedures. The City reviews
outstanding debts annually and provides a provision should debts become doubtful.
2015/2016
Current
$
1,976,667
607,412
0
0
244,802
1,969,890
4,798,771
(g)

Financial Assets
Rates and Annual Charges
Under Ground Power
Interest
TPS 21
Goods and Services Tax
General Debtors

1,610,447
626,581
0
0
859,657
2,650,362
5,747,047

DETERMINATION OF SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) BROUGHT FORWARD AND CARRIED FORWARD
Adopted
ACTUAL
Budget
2015/2016
2016/2017
$
$
Current Assets
55,212,276
4,191,358
132,172
1,460
59,537,266

2016/2017
Current
Non
Current
$
$

Non
Current
$
660,134
3,783,337
0
2,684,775
0
0
7,128,246

(a)

POSITION AT COMMENCEMENT OF FINANCIAL YEAR

659,019
3,156,755
0
2,370,912
0
0
6,186,686

6,925,619 Trade and Other Payable
9,229,871 Provisions

16,155,490

43,381,776
0
(36,805,855)
30
6,575,951

The City has investments in Financial Instruments that are subject to interest rate risk in that future cash flows may fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
Actual
2016/2017
$
681,591
1,703,977

Impact of 1% Movement in Interest Rates on Investment Earnings (+/-)
Impact of 2.5% Movement in Interest Rates on Investment Earnings (+/-)

Current
Non Current
$
$
45,048,000
0
45,048,000
0

Term Deposits

Total
Investments
2016/2017
$
45,048,000
45,048,000

SURPLUS OF CURRENT ASSETS OVER
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Add Back Non Current Investments
Less Cash Backed Reserves and Restricted Funds
Rounding
OPENING/CLOSING FUNDS

Liquidity Risk
Payable and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk - that is the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to meet payment obligations as and
when they fall due. Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate buffer.
Payment terms can be extended and overdraft facilities drawn upon if required.
The maturity analysis for the City's financial liabilities is detailed as follows;
Less than
1 year
$

1 to 5
years
$

Greater than
5 years
$

Contractual
Value
$

Carrying
Value
$

11,364,733
2,700,409
320,438
14,385,580

0
5,912,552
478,176
6,390,728
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0
342,498
10,962
353,460

11,364,733
8,955,459
809,576
21,129,768

11,364,733
8,955,459
0
20,320,192

6,179,057
8,591,668
0

17,040,636

14,770,725

33,019,133

43,553,067

(32,669,133)
0
350,000

(37,833,322)
28
5,719,773

Net Current Asset detailed in the 2016/2017 Annual Budget
Net Current Assets Brought Forward as at 1st July 2016
Variance - Surplus / (Deficit)
25

$1,774,306
$6,575,951
$4,801,645

FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY RATIO

Current Ratio
Asset Sustainability Ratio
Debt Service Cover Ratio
Operating Surplus Ratio
Own Source Revenue Coverage Ratio

1.05
0.50
2.13
-0.16
0.73

2015/2016

2016/2017

0.93
0.53
4.47
-0.09
0.78

1.08
0.60
5.62
-0.04
0.80

The above ratios are calculated as follows:
Current Ratio

Current Assets minus Restricted Assets
Current Liabilities Minus Liabilities Associated with Restricted Assets

Debt Service Cover Ratio

Annual Operating Surplus Before Interest and Depreciation
Principal and Interest

Own Source Revenue Coverage Ratio

Own Source Operating Revenue
Operating Expense

Operating Surplus Ratio

Operating Revenue minus Operating Expense
Own Source Operating Revenue

Asset Sustainability Ratio

Capital Renewal and Replacement Expenditure
Depreciation

Financial Liabilities
Accounts Payable - Current
Borrowings - Principal
Borrowings - Interest

6,612,221
10,428,415

In accordance with Financial Management Regulation 36(1)(b) the following reconciliation is provided between the Net Current Assets carried
forward from the previous financial year, compared to the Net Current Assets detailed in the 2016/2017 Annual Budget.

2014/2015
(h)

52,827,680
5,120,466
63,680
311,966
58,323,792

(b) STATEMENT OF RECONCILIATION OF NET CURRENT ASSETS BROUGHT FORWARD

The City has investments in Financial Instruments that may be subject to market rate risk in the event that the investments are not held to maturity.
The City's investments comprise;
Total
Investments
2015/2016
$
40,505,500
40,505,500

45,371,719
4,539,807
145,172
3,071
50,059,769

Less Current Liabilities

Market Risk

Actual
2015/2016
$
656,103
1,640,258

Cash at Bank
Receivables
Stock on Hand
Prepaid Expenses

ACTUAL
2016/2017
$
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RATIO INFORMATION
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Development costs represent preliminary expenditure on Town Planning Schemes financed by the City.

The following information relates to those ratios which only require an attestation they have been checked and are supported by verifiable
information.
2014/2015
Asset Consumption Ratio
Asset Renewal Ratio

0.62
1.29

2015/2016

ACTUAL
2015/2016
$

2016/2017

0.61
1.33

DEVELOPMENT COSTS

0.63
1.37

2,957,583
2,957,583

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

26

Asset Consumption Ratio

Depreciated Replacement Cost or Depreciable Assets
Current Replacement Cost of Depreciable Assets

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

NPV of Planned Capital Renewals over 10 Years
NPV of Required Capital Renewals over 10 Years

(25,479)
(247,329)
(272,808)
2,684,775

ACTUAL
2015/2016
$

ACTUAL
2016/2017
$

(25,479)
(247,329)
(272,808)
2,370,912

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS RECOVERABLE

281,257
2,089,655
2,370,912

Current
Rates
Security Levy
Instalment Administration Fee
Sanitation
Swimming Pool Charges
Underground Power
Private Works
General
Less Provision for Doubtful Debts
Goods and Services Tax
Under Ground Power Debtors - Wilson West
Under Ground Power Debtors - Bentley East
Under Ground Power Debtors - Wilson East

1,112,451
58,236
2,991
389,291
4,001
43,477
12,507
2,754,205
(116,350)
859,657
195,224
197,070
234,287
5,747,047

Non Current
Rates Outstanding-Pensioner Deferred
ESL Outstanding-Pensioner Deferred
Under Ground Power Debtors - Wilson West
Under Ground Power Debtors - Bentley East
Under Ground Power Debtors - Wilson East

558,896
100,123
887,182
895,571
1,374,002
3,815,774

Town Planning Schemes 29 and 38
Further costs are to be incurred in relation to the Schemes, the Over Recovery of Scheme Costs is considered temporary.
29

ACTUAL
2015/2016
$

1,184,865
489,614
0
1,674,479

991,169
2,783,692
6,436,005
10,210,866
11,885,345
30

ACTUAL
2016/2017
$
Income Received in Advance
Crossover Construction Fees
Other
Interest Received in Advance
Sub Total

1,106,390
246,403
0
1,352,793

Accounts Payable
Kerb and Footpath Deposits
Canning Lodge Accommodation Bonds
Materials, Goods and Services Received (General Creditors)
Sub Total

1,088,144
2,991,142
5,932,654
10,011,940
11,364,733

PROVISIONS
Provisions for employees’ entitlements at balance date are as follows:
ACTUAL
2015/2016
$

ACTUAL
2016/2017
$
Comprises of Construction Materials, Fuels and Consumables

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
ACTUAL
2015/2016
$

INVENTORIES

132,172

Development costs over recovered
Town Planning Scheme No 29
Town Planning Scheme No 38

Recovery of Costs are subject to as and when participants in the Schemes subdivide their land holdings in accordance with the relevant Scheme
Texts and Maps.

Deferred pensioners rates represent amounts owing by pensioners who have chosen to defer the payment of their rates in accordance with the
Rates and Charges (Rebates and Deferments) Act 1992.
27

2,643,720
2,643,720

Town Planning Schemes 21

Receivables due to the City include the following:

563,880
96,254
1,082,407
1,092,641
1,608,289
4,443,471

Development costs to be recovered
Town Planning Scheme No 21

The following table shows breakdown of current and non-current potion of development cost receivable:
Amount recoverable within 12 months (Current)
Amount recoverable after 12 months (non-current)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

1,088,443
39,093
2,900
268,715
2,492
30,686
11,869
2,523,275
(20,915)
244,801
185,627
187,382
234,403
4,798,771

ACTUAL
2016/2017
$

5,531,995
3,697,876
9,229,871

Current
-Accrued Annual Leave
-Accrued Long Service Leave
Sub Total

4,837,804
3,753,864
8,591,668

912,950
912,950

Non Current
- Accrued Long Service Leave
Sub Total

871,187
871,187

63,680

All stock on hand at balance date has been valued at cost.

ACTUAL
2016/2017
$

10,142,821

9,462,855

Accrued Long Service Leave Liability has been calculated under the provisions of AASB 119 and in accordance with the provision of the Local
Government (Long Service Leave) amendment Regulations 1983.
In addition to the above entitlements, Council’s Policy provides for the following:
(i)

The provision of a watch, suitably inscribed, the value of which (together with engraving costs) is not to exceed $200.00, to those officers or
employees who have completed ten (10) years service with the Municipality.

Page 1
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The provision of a watch, suitably inscribed, the value of which (together with engraving costs) is not to exceed $400.00, to those officers or
employees who have completed twenty-five (25) continuous years service with the Municipality.
Alternatively, a recipient may make a written request to the Chief Executive Officer for a donation to be made (in lieu of the watch) to a recognised
charity of their choice.

32

TOWN PLANNING SCHEMES

(a)

With Overdraft Facility
Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

Council‟s yearly liability is estimated at up to $3,000 and considered immaterial and has not been brought into account in these statements.

DESCRIPTION
(ii)

The provision of a gratuity, as a token of appreciation, to officers and employees who are retiring as follows:

TP23
$

Revenue
Valuation
Scheme Income
Interest on Investments
Reimbursement - Drainage Construction

Upon resignation, termination or retirement of an Employee, Council shall as a token of appreciation as recognition for
years of continuous service, provide the following:
The payment made shall be the greater of:

TPS24
$

TOTAL
$

0
0
329
0
329

0
0
3870
0
3,870

0
0
4,199
0
4,199

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

329

3,870

4,199

(i) Prior to completion of ten (10) years service - Benefit Nil.

Expenses
Road Construction
All other Brown Roads
Cycleways
Valuation Expenses
Legal Expenses

(ii) On completion of ten (10) years service - Benefit - One days salary.
(iii) On completion of eleven (11) years service and above - Benefit - One days salary plus 75% of a day's salary for each
completed year of service over ten (10) years
or
(iv) On completion of twenty (20) years to twenty nine (29) years of service - Benefit - $7,500 subject to the employee
having accumulated sick leave entitlement, to the extent not taken to a total of not less than 75% of the maximum sick
leave which can be accumulated.

Net Income Over Expenses

or

Bank Balance As At 01.07.16

14,655

145,531

160,186

(v) On completion of thirty (30) years and above - Benefit - $15,000 subject to the employee, having accumulated sick
leave entitlement to the extent not taken to a total of not less than 75% of the maximum sick leave which can be
accumulated.

Bank Balance As At 30.06.17

14,984

149,401

164,385

Deficit/Surplus Represented by:
Assets
- Cash At Bank
- Investments

2,984
12,000

7,901
141,500

10,885
153,500

NET ASSETS OVER LIABILITIES

14,984

149,401

164,385

(vi) A Pro-rata payment shall apply for part time employees.
(viii) Any further recommended payments must be referred to Council for approval.
(viii) The Chief Executive Officer shall use his or her discretion to waive any rights to the above benefits in cases where
an employee is dismissed by Council for reasons of misconduct or unsatisfactory work performance.
(iii)

(i)

Contract of Employment - Executive Officers and Managers.
The City has entered into Contracts of Employment with its three Directors and twenty six Managers (29 Officers).

The Overdraft facility was established in August 1973 for the sum of $500,000.

In the event that the City has not agreed to employ the Officers after the expiration of the Contract period (5 years), a liability
may arise as follows:
(a)

If the Officer is under the age of 45 years at the time employment is terminated, 30% of the annual current cash salary, less any
applicable tax shall be paid;

Purpose - Implementation of Guided Development Town Planning Scheme No. 23.
(ii)

Town Planning Scheme No. 24
The Overdraft facility was established in October 1976 for the sum of $400,000.

or
(b)

Town Planning Scheme No 23

If the Officer is 45 years of age but under 55 years of age at the time employment is terminated, 40% of the annual current
cash salary less any applicable tax shall be paid;

Purpose - Implementation of Guided Development Town Planning Scheme No. 24.
(b)

or
(c)

If the Officer is 55 years of age or over at the time employment is terminated, 50% of the annual current salary, less any
applicable tax shall be paid.
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ROSSMOYNE AND WILSON RETIREMENT VILLAGES-RESIDENTS’ EQUITY

With No Overdraft Facility
Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017
DESCRIPTION

The Resident‟s Equity in the Villages amounted to $4,994,577 which is in exchange for their life occupancy of the Units.
The Resident‟s Equity is summarised as follows:
ACTUAL
2015/2016
$
6,011,377 Resident‟s Equity Opening Balance
(155,800) PLUS Capital Gain on the re-allocation of Units
5,855,577 Resident‟s Equity Closing Balance

ACTUAL
2016/2017
$
5,855,577
(861,000)
4,994,577

Resident equity is classified as a current liability in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, however historically the council expects the
majority of this liability to be extinguished in a period greater than 12 months.
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TPS21
$

TPS29
$

TPS38
$

TOTAL
$

Revenue
Contributions - Valuation Fees
Contributions - Scheme Costs

34,102
301,527

0
0

0
0

34,102
301,527

Expenses
Underground Power
Valuations
Legal Costs
Roadworks Abutting POS
Land Acquisition - Orange Roads

0
(21,600)
(166)
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
(21,600)
(166)
0
0

Funds Advanced by Municipality

313,863

0

0

313,863

Funds Advanced As At 01.07.16

(2,957,583)

25,479

247,329

(2,684,775)

Funds Advanced As At 30.06.17

(2,643,720)

25,479

247,329

(2,370,912)
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Represented by:
Assets
- Development Costs Capitalised
Liabilities
- Development Cost Over Recovered
NET ASSETS OVER LIABILITIES
33
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35
2,643,720

0

0

2,643,720

0

(25,479)

(247,329)

(272,808)

2,643,720

(25,479)

(247,329)

2,370,912

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The City measures the following non current assets on a recurring basis:
Land and Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
The following table provides the fair values of the City's non current assets measured and recognised on a recurring
basis after initial recognition and their categorisation within the fair value hierarchy:

JOINT VENTURES
The City had no joint venture as at the end of financial year.

Level 1
34

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Land
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure - Roads
Infrastructure - Footpath & Cycleways
Infrastructure - Drainage
Infrastructure - Bridges
Infrastructure - Recreation Facilities
Infrastructure - Other

The City did not have any contingent liability as at the year end.

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Level 1
Land
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure - Roads
Infrastructure - Footpath & Cycleways
Infrastructure - Drainage
Infrastructure - Bridges
Infrastructure - Recreation Facilities
Infrastructure - Other

(a)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2016/2017
Level 2
23,504,000
2,025,000
0
8,387,393
0
0
0
0
0
0
33,916,393
2015/2016
Level 2
0
40,187,590
0
9,694,493
0
0
0
0
0
0
49,882,083

Level 3
41,556,500
148,906,773
2,096,508
0
329,205,033
33,569,788
68,789,841
14,159,001
64,612,748
5,301,071

Total
65,060,500
150,931,773
2,096,508
8,387,393
329,205,033
33,569,788
68,789,841
14,159,001
64,612,748
5,301,071

708,197,263

742,113,656

Level 3
74,348,300
83,914,431
1,855,150
0
329,749,365
33,940,333
69,545,880
14,617,716
63,671,361
5,782,463
677,424,999

Total
74,348,300
124,102,021
1,855,150
9,694,493
329,749,365
33,940,333
69,545,880
14,617,716
63,671,361
5,782,463
727,307,082

Transfers Policy
The policy of the City of Canning is to recognise transfers into and transfer out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the reporting period. There were no transfers in and out of Levels 1, 2 or 3 measurements.

(b)

Highest and Best Use
There were no assets valued where it was assumed that the highest and best use was other than their current use.

(c)

Valuation techniques and inputs used to derive fair values
The following table summaries valuation inputs and techniques used to determine the fair value for each asset class.

Asset Class

Level of
Valuation
Input

Fair Value at
30 June 2017

Valuation
Technique(s)

Inputs Used

Land

2

23,504,000 Market Approach

Price per square metre

Land

3

41,556,500 Market Approach

Price per square metre

Buildings

2

2,025,000 Market Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount
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Asset Class

Furniture and Equipment
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Level of
Valuation
Input
3

3

Plant and Equipment

2

Infrastructure - Roads

3

Infrastructure Footpath &
Cycleways

3

Recurring fair value measurements
Fair Value at
Valuation
30 June 2017
Technique(s)
148,906,773 Cost Approach

2,096,508 Cost Approach

8,387,393 Market Approach

329,205,033 Cost Approach

33,569,788 Cost Approach

Inputs Used
Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount

Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount

Make, size, year of manufacture
and condition.
Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount

Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount

Infrastructure - Drainage

3

68,789,841 Cost Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount

Infrastructure - Bridges

3

14,159,001 Cost Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount

Infrastructure Recreation
Facilities

3

64,612,748 Cost Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful
life, pattern of consumption and
asset condition and relationship
to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the
depreciable amount

In order to estimate the price implied by the appropriate basis of value, the valuer will need to apply one or more
valuation approaches. A valuation approach or method refers to generally accepted analytical methodologies that are
in common use.
Land
Land assets were revalued as at 30 June 2017 by a professinally qualified valuer as part of mandatory requirements
under Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 17A. The valuation was performed using Cost and Market
approach using level 2 and level 3 input.
Level 2 inputs refer to a comparative approach that considers the sales of similar or substitute properties and related
market data, and establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparison. In general, a property being valued
(a subject property) is compared with sales of similar properties that have been transacted in the market. Listing and
offerings may also be considered.

Level 3 inputs are used to value land held in freehold title as well as land used for special purposes that are restricted in
use under current zoning rules (i.e. Commercial, Recreation or Parks). Professional judgement from a registered
valuer, was engaged to investigate land value within a wider general area of the region, where traditionally land values
are at their lowest. The appropriate sales of this marginal land was then applied to the subject property after making
due allowances for location, size and utility. The most significant inputs in this valuation approach were price per square
metre.
Buildings
Building assets were revalued as at 30 June 2017 by a professinally qualified valuer as part of mandatory requirements
under Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 17A. The valuation was performed using Cost and Market
approach using level 2 and level 3 input.

The City's building and improvement assets are considered to be of a "specialised nature" (non - market type
properties which are not readily traded in the market place), such assets valued by a professionally qualified registered
valuer using the cost approach. This approach is commonly referred to as the depreciated replacement cost (DRC).

The "DRC" approach considers the cost (sourced from cost guides such as Rawlinson's, Cordell, professional quantity
surveyors and recent construction costs for similar projects throughout Western Australia) to reproduce or replace
similar assets with an asset in new condition, including allowance for installation, less an amount for depreciation in the
form of accrued physical wear and tear, economic and functional obsolescence. The depreciation consists of a
combination of unit rates based on square metres and quantification of the component parts of the asset. Other inputs
(i.e. remaining useful life, asset condition and utility) required extensive professional judgement and impacted
significantly on the final determination of fair value. Therefore all the City's building and improvements assets were
classified as having been valued using Level 3 valuation inputs except Community Buildings relating to Aged Care,
Disability Services, and Youth Services, which was valued using level 2 input. The direct comparison approach has
been adopted for level 2 valuation of the City's stand-alone residential properties.
Furniture and Equipment
The City's furniture and equipment were previously valued by a professionally qualified registered valuer, using the
cost approach to determine amounts for replacement with new value, less an amount for depreciation due to physical
wear and tear, economic and functional obsolescence. Market research has been carried out into costs for the same or
similar assets from manufacturers, agents and or suppliers. Where information is not available to source the
replacement cost of an asset due to the specialised nature or the asset being purpose built, the replacement cost of the
asset has been established by applying quantity surveying techniques in breaking down the components of the asset.
Construction rates (sourced from various cost guides such as Rawlinson's, Cordell's, Quantity Surveyors, material
suppliers, construction companies etc.) have been used as the basis for replacing assets.
Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment assets were previously revalued as part of the mandatory requirements embodied in Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulation 17A. Any accumulated depreciation reflects the usage of service
potential, it is considered that the recorded written down values approximate fair values. Thus, the value of the class of
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Infrastructure Assets

In accordance with AASB13 and legislative requirements, the City carried out internal management revaluations of its
infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2017. These valuations were completed using the Cost Approach. This approach is
commonly referred to as the Depreciated Replacement Cost. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input. The
valuations were coordinated, developed and prepared in-house and formed by establishing unit rates for infrastructure
replacement that consider labour cost, overhead costs, plant hire cost and materials. Sources as outlined below were
used to derive unit rates:
• Contract rates for materials based on current tenders with various suppliers.
• Internal knowledge from key operational stakeholders.
• Current charge out rates for internal labour activities.
• Current charge out rates for internal plant hire activities.
• Greenfield method was used to determine unit rates.

A comprehensive data audit was carried out at the end of financial year to include all assets created through capital
work programme. The completed new works were identified through financial transaction and verified through aerial
photography and field validation. Road network data is maintained in Roman II road management system which uses
RAMM GIS for graphical representation of the road network. Footpath Network data had been captured in MS Access
file system and loaded into Mapinfo tab file. Drainage network had been plotted into Microstation file and loaded on
City's intramap system. There is a reasonable level of confidence in terms of data accuracy of various infrastructure
assets. All other infrastructure assets are maintained on excel and updated for every additions / disposals as they occur.

Infrastructure assets for Parks assets is recorded in the operational asset register maintained on excel. The rates used
for the Parks data were obtained from several sources. For previous years valuations, an Excel spread sheet showing all
park development / infrastructure assets and current replacement costs has been used. These rates were indexed with
a factor of CPI for all parks development assets to derive current replacement cost of all parks assets. With respect to
Parks infrastructure assets the cost has been determined using Greenfield method using the current material, labour
and contract rates for development of parks.
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(d)

Quantitative Information about significant unobservable inputs and relationship to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative information about the key significant unobservable inputs (level 3 fair
value hierarchy), the ranges of those inputs and the relationships of unobservable inputs to the fair value
measurements.
Description and Fair Value
as at 30 June 2017

Valuation
Technique(s)

Land
($70,130,500)

Cost Approach Price per square
metre

Buildings and Improvements
($150,931,772)

Unobservable
Inputs

Range of Inputs
(probability weighted
average)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

+/- 10%

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by
$7,013,050

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by
$15,093,177

Furniture and Equipment
($2,096,508)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by $209,651

Plant and Equipment
($8,387,393)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by $838,739

Infrastructure - Roads
($329,205,033)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by
$32,920,503

Infrastructure - Footpath
($33,569,788)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by
$3,356,978

Infrastructure - Drainage
($68,789,840)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by
$6,878,984

Infrastructure - Bridges
($14,159,001)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by
$1,415,900

Infrastructure - Recreation
Facilities ($64,612,748)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by
$6,461,275

Infrastructure - Other
($5,301,071)

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost

Cost to
+/- 10%
reproduce or
replace asset in
new condition,
less an amount for
depreciation

A change of 10% would result in a
change in fair value by $530,107
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(e)
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Valuation Processes

The City engaged an external, independent and qualified valuer to determine the fair value of the City's Land and
Buildings. The City and the valuer had regular discussions regarding the valuation methodology, assumptions,
completeness of asset data and asset information. The relevance of valuation methodology was reviewed with the valuer
to ensure that the valuations and the output from the valuer would be fully compliant with the related Accounting
Standards. In accordance with the mandatory asset measurement framework detailed at Note 1.3.0 the City prepare the
revaluation of its non current assets on a regular basis.
An annual assessment is undertaken to determine whether the carrying amount of the assets is materially different from
the fair value. If any variation is considered material, a revaluation is undertaken either by comprehensive revaluation
or by applying an interim revaluation using appropriate indices.
As at 30 June 2017 a comprehensive revaluation was undertaken by NS Advisory of City's land assets and building
assets.

SEGMENT REPORTING
In accordance with the Aged Care Act 1997 and the Residential Care Subsidy Principles provided under this Act, Council
provides the following segment reporting relating to Residential Aged Care in relation to its services conducted at
Canning Lodge.

Current Year Information for Canning Lodge
Segment Expenses
Employee Costs
- Care Employees
- Other Employees
Materials and Contracts
Depreciation
Other

- Interest

Relationship between asset consumption rating scale and the level of consumed service potential

Under the cost approach the estimated cost to replace the asset is calculated and then adjusted to take account of an
accumulated depreciation. In order to achieve this, the valuer determines an asset consumption rating scale for each
asset type based on legal and commercial obsolescence and the determination of the depreciation related assumptions
such as residual value, useful life and pattern of consumption of the future economic benefit. The consumption rating
scales were based initially on the past experience of the valuation firm and industry guides and were then updated to
take into account the experience and understanding of the City's own engineers, asset management and finance staff.
The results of the valuation were further evaluated by confirmation against the City's own understanding of the assets
and the level of remaining service potential.
Disclosed Fair Value Measurements
The following assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, but their fair
values are disclosed in the notes:
- Borrowings
The following table provides the level of fair value hierarchy within which the disclosed fair value measurements are
categorised in their entirety and a description of the valuation technique(s) and inputs used:
Description

Note

Fair Value
Hierarchy Level

Valuation
Technique(s)

Inputs Used

Liabilities

Borrowings

7 & 22

2

Income approach
using discounted
cash flow
methodology

Current treasury
borrowing rates for
similar instruments

There has been no change in the valuation technique(s) used to calculate the fair values disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

(1,900,944)

(58,970,393)

(60,871,337)

(459,100)
(111,651)
(189,503)

(28,109,690)
(20,418,560)
(9,668,673)

(28,568,790)
(20,530,211)
(9,858,176)

846,194

30,561,415

31,407,609

1,212,832
89,729

17,909,363
73,480,942

19,122,195
73,570,671

2,148,755

121,951,720

124,100,475

(512,443)

4,784,404

4,271,961

3,389,145
1,803,837
5,192,982

60,912,485
756,962,610
817,875,095

64,301,630
758,766,447
823,068,077

(3,224,709)

(24,426,678)

(27,651,387)

(14,218)
(3,238,927)

(7,112,019)
(31,538,697)

(7,126,237)
(34,777,624)

1,954,055

786,336,398

788,290,453

0
0
0

6,683,403
15,753,971
2,152,735

6,683,403
15,753,971
2,152,735

763,319
82,875

Government Grants
Other

This is the cost estimate to replace the existing land if the City had to acquire is on the open market in competition with
other market participants. Because of the restricted nature and unique characteristics of this land, there was insufficient
market evidence of directly comparable sales. Professional judgement was used by the valuer who investigated land
value within a wider general area of the region where traditionally land values are at their lowest. The appropriate sales
of this marginal land was then applied to the subject property after making due allowances for location, size and utility.
This provided only a low level of comparability.

Total
2016/2017
$

(2,661,198) (117,167,316) (119,828,514)

- Resident Charges
- Bond Retentions

Cost for land restricted in use (non saleable)

Other
Segments
2016/2017
$

(1,686,361)
(214,583)

Segment Revenues
Fees and Charges

The main Level 3 inputs used are derived and evaluated as follows:

(f)

Residential
Aged Care
2016/2017
$

89,729

Segment Result
Segment Assets
Current Assets
Non - Current Assets

Segment Liabilities
Current Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
Non - Current Liabilities

(2,991,142)

Net Assets for Segment
Acquisition of Property, Plant, Furniture and Equipment
Acquisition of Infrastructure Assets
Acquisition of Intangible Assets

203,744,036
458,980,175
3,152,389
54,651,185
794,751,395

92 | The City of Canning

Prior Year Comparative information for Canning Lodge
Segment Expenses
Employee Costs
- Care Employees
- Other Employees
Materials and Contracts
Depreciation
Other

Residential
Aged Care
2015/2016
$

Other
Segments
2015/2016
$

Total
2015/2016
$

(1,718,207)

(58,021,779)

(59,739,986)

(422,816)
(122,982)
(74,845)

(28,605,608)
(20,485,491)
(9,373,342)

(29,028,424)
(20,608,473)
(9,448,187)

(1,511,220)
(206,988)

(2,338,850) (116,486,220) (118,825,070)
Segment Revenues
Fees and Charges
- Resident Charges
- Bond Retentions
Government Grants
Other
- Interest

834,466

31,727,561

32,562,027

1,334,609
89,104

14,698,832
71,143,439

16,033,441
71,232,543

2,258,179

117,569,832

119,828,011

(80,671)

1,083,612

1,002,941

3,587,066
1,648,851
5,235,917

56,874,984
732,640,494
789,515,478

60,462,050
734,289,345
794,751,395

(2,994,391)

(26,453,796)

(29,448,187)

(6,807)
(3,001,198)

(9,146,602)
(35,600,398)

(9,153,409)
(38,601,596)

2,234,719

753,915,080

756,149,799

0

5,854,023

5,854,023

802,279
32,187

89,104

Segment Result
Segment Assets
Current Assets
Non - Current Assets

Segment Liabilities
Current Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
Non - Current Liabilities

Acquisition of Property, Plant, Furniture and Equipment

Actual
2015/2016

38

Actual
2016/2017
Number of Full time Equivalent Employees as at Balance Date

633

Council also authorised transfer of the following aged care services to Silver Chain, subject to approval of the funding
provider, and on terms and conditions negotiated by the Chief Executive Officer:
a)
Home and Community Care (HACC) Program:
i) All one-on-one service types funded by the HACC Program.
ii) Day Centre activities at Everglades, Pendana and Queens Park.
b)
Respite Care (Commonwealth Home Support Program).
c)
Home Care Packages (HCP) Program.
d)
Community Visitors Scheme (CVS).
The City ceased providing services under the Australian Government’s Home Care Packages Program on 30 September
2017, with Silver Chain commencing services the following day on 1 October 2017. The remaining services will be
transitioned to Silver Chain in the 2017/2018 financial year.
The financial statements include following operating results (included under "Education and Welfare" statutory program)
with respect to discontinued operations as at 30 June 2017 and operations to be discontinued during 2017-18 financial
year.
Statement of Comrehensive Income by Nature and Type
Operating Expenditure
Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts
Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
Utility Charges (Gas, Electricity, Water, etc)
Insurance Expenses
Interest Expenses
Other Expenditure
Operating Revenue
Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Fees and Charges

8,179,734
679,159
265,062
128,842
4,929
0
897,603
10,155,329
9,071,481
1,006,511
10,077,992

Net Operating Surplus / (Deficit)

(77,337)

Actual
2015/2016
$

Actual
2016/2017
$
Governance
Law, Order & �
Public Safety
Health
Education & �
Welfare
Housing
Community �
Amenities
Recreation & �
Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property & �
Services

EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

1,456,987
51,546
1,508,533

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables

Non-Current Assets
169,372

Property, Plant and Equipment

1,677,905

Current Liabilities

Council‟s Assets classified by Program are summarised as follows:

39

At a Special Council Meeting on Thursday 6 April 2017 the Council gave consideration to Report CE-008-17 – Aged Care
and Disability Services Review and subject to approval of the funding provider, authorised the transfer of the Regional
Assessment Services to Access Care Network Australia (ACNA), on terms and conditions negotiated by the Chief
Executive Officer. The transition of service was successful. The City ceased providing the Department of Health WA
funded service on Friday 30 June 2017.

Total Assets

TOTAL ASSET CLASSIFIED BY PROGRAM

13,656,676
2,591,290
417,097
17,499,087
13,547,844
26,511,616
203,744,036
458,980,175
3,152,389
54,651,185
794,751,395

EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Statement of Financial Position
Current Assets

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

667

217,393,127
464,345,135
The3,462,811
City of Canning
56,309,666
828,138,076

(2,783,692)

Net Assets for Segment

37

39

Recreation & �
Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property & �
Services

18,615,299
3,292,177
1,043,833
20,029,467
17,599,753
26,046,808
217,393,127
464,345,135
3,462,811
56,309,666
828,138,076

560,687
1,013,118
1,573,805

Trade and Other Payables
Provisions

Non-Current Liabilities
104,100

Provisions

Total Liabilities

1,677,905
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